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CONDOLENCE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To pay condolence and honor to the departed soul of the beloved and 
honorable Chairman of the Company Late Afzalur Rahman Sinha 

At the very outset of the meeting, Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha, Managing 
Director brought to the notice of the Members present at the meeting the 
fact that Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha, Chairman of the Company had expired 
on 8 August 2018 in Gleneagles Global Health City Hospital, Chennai, India 
leaving his family members, colleagues, employees of the ACME family, 
Business Community, Corporate Houses, Sports Lovers,  Government 
��������	�
�����

	�	����	��	������������	�
	�	�����	��	�����	�
�	����
�

�	

���	 ���	 �������	 ��	 ���	 �����	 �
����������	 ����	 ���	 ����	 �
�	 ��
���
����	
the multifaceted contribution made by Late Afzalur Rahman Sinha and 
���������	�����	����	�����	��	���	�
������	������	��	!��	"�
��#	�
���������#	
his death has caused an irrepairable loss for the Company and also for the 
country. Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq, Chairman of the Meeting conveyed his heart-
felt condolences to the bereaved family, on behalf of the Board and other 
members of the ACME family. The Board of Directors observed a one minute 
����
��	��	�	����	��	�������	��	���	��������	����	�
�	������	���	����	����	�
	
eternal peace.  

Syed Shahed Reza, Independent Director recalled the past activities of Late 
Chairman including his role in achieving the present position of the Company. 
He specially mentioned Late Chairman’s deep concern for accountability 
to the shareholders, national exchequer, employees of the Company, 
��
��������
	 �������	 ���	 ������	 ������
���	 ��	 ���	 $��
���	 �
�	 $��������	
Social Responsibility (CSR) to the country at large. He said, all these aspects 
����	���	%���	$������
	�
	��������
��	�������	��	�����	���	�����	����	��	
serve the people and the nation.

Apart from this, the Board also recalled the saddened condolences of 
��

������	$������	$�
����	�����	&�$�'#	*����	$���	%���#	�����
�	$���	%���	
and Surja Torun Club including other Corporate Houses and Individuals.

+��
	���	�����	������	���	�������

	���������
�/

+��	 �����	 ��	 *��������	 ���������	 �����	 �����	 �
�	 ����
	 ���	 �����
	 �
�	
untimely demise of former Chairman Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha. They prayed 
for the salvation of his departed soul. They also prayed to Almighty Allah for 
giving strength to the bereaved family members and the entire ACME family 
to bear this irrepairable loss.

+��	*�����������	��	����	��	���	$������
����	��	%���	��3����	4����
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TRANSMITTAL LETTER

15 November 2018

The Members 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission 
4�
������	��	w��
�	"����	$����
���	�
�	_����	
*����	"����	]����

�	%������
$�����
�

	"����	]����

�	%������	

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2018. 

Dear Sir(s), 

{�	 ���	 �������	 ��	 �
�����	 �	 ����	 ��	 ���	 �

���	 4�����	 ��
�����	 ����	 ���	 �������	 _�
�
����	 "������
��	
�����	 �
������	 ���	 "������
�	 ��	 _�
�
����	 F������
	 ��	 ��	 |:	 w�
�	 7:;6#	 "������
�	 ��	 F��<�	 ��	 %���	 �
�	
\����	$�������
����	 [
����#	"������
�	��	$��

��	 �
	]}����	�
�	"������
�	��	$���	_����	��	+��	�$!]	
%�����������	%���	���	���	����	�
���	|:	w�
�	7:;6	���

	����	
����	������
	�
�	���	�������	"������
��	���	
your record and necessary measures.

Yours sincerely, 

�������	
���
�����������
Company Secretary 
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NOTICE
 

15 November 2018

NOTICE OF THE 42nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 42nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of The ACME 
%�����������	%���	����	��	����	�
	+�������#		~	*�������	7:;6	��	;:/|:	����	��	F"$	$�
��
���
	����	&;st Floor), 
F�����	"���	$����
�	��

������#	!�����	�;�#	*����	�;7:~	��	���
����	���	�������

	����
�����/

AGENDA

A 2018-42- 01 : To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 June 2018 and the Reports of the Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

A 2018-42- 02 : To approve proposed dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018.
A 2018-42- 03 : +�	�����	*��������	�
	�����	��	�����	���	�����	������	��	�������
	�
	�������
��	����	���	

provision of Articles of Association of the Company.
A 2018-42- 04 : +�	�����
�	�������	�
�	<�	�����	����
������
�	
A 2018-42- 05 : To appoint Compliance Auditor.
A 2018-42- 06 : To approve the rearrangement of Use of IPO Proceeds

By order of the Board

�������	
���
������FCS�
Company Secretary 

Notes:

��	 +��	������	����	���	<���	�
		�|;	\������	7:;6 �̀	+��	"�����������#	�����	
���	����	��	��������	�
	���	"����	
4�
�����	��	���	$����
�	��	���	�����	��	����
���	�
	���	�4�����	*���`	����	��	���
����	��	����
�	���	�7nd  Annual 
General Meeting and entitled to get dividend.

ii. A member eligible to attend and vote in the AGM may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her behalf. The 
F����	_���	����	���������	�
�	�������	����	��	���������	��	���	��
�������	�����	��	���	$����
�	
��	�����	
���
	�6	�����	������	���	����	<���	���	���	�

���	X�
����	!����

�

����	 ��������
	�
��	���	��
��	��	���	�X!	����	��	��������	�������	�
�	����<��	����	���	����
��
��	����	��
�	����	���	
F����	_���	��	����	��	����<�����
	��	��

�����	��	!�����&�'	�
�^��	F������������&�'�

���	 !������	 ���	 ��}������	 ��	 ������	 �����	 ����������	 �\	 �����
��	 ����	 ;7	 *�
��	 ��+[�#	 ��
�	 �����
�#	 !����

	
Address and Contact Number through their respective Depository Participant (DP). Advance Income Tax (AIT) 
�	;��	&�
�����	��	;:�'	����	��	��������	 ����	���
����	����	������
�#	 ��	�
��
�	 �����	 ��	������	���^���	�\	
�����
�	����	���	;7	*�
��	��+[�	������^�
	���	4�����	*����		

��	 �

���	4�����#	����
��
��	"���	�
�	F����	_���	���

	����	������	���	���

	��
�	��	���	���	!������	�����
�	
E-mail / Postal Services (address available in the respective BO Account).  The members may also collect the 
�

���	 4�����	 �
�	 F����	 _���	 ����	 ���	 4�
�������	 \����	 ��	 ���	 $����
�	 �
�	 ���	 ���
����	 ���	 �

���	
4�����	�
�	F����	_���	����	���	$����
�`�	�������/	www.acmeglobal.com.

���	 !������^	F������	���	��}������	��	������	�����	�
���	�
	���	�X!	����	�
	����	�
	~	*�������	7:;6	&+�������'�	
+��	��
��������
	���
����	����	��	���
��	��	6�::	����	�
	���	�X!	�����

����	 +��	��
���
	!�����
�	��
��	�
�	���	*���������	F��������
��	&*F'	���	��}������	��	�������	��	�	�������
�	
����	 ���	 �������	 &"�����������`	 �����#	 �\	 [*	 �������#	 $���
������	 ����������

	 �������
#	 X����	 *�����
�	
4����������#	 ����������	 ���	 ����	 �
�	 ���	 *�����
�	 4����������'	 ��	 �����	 !��
�
	 %��
	 �������	 ���	 ����	
$����
�`�	�����#	��	�
	���	�4�����	*���`	���

	����	���	
���	��	���	$�
����	F����
	�
	����	��

�����
#	��	���	
$����
�`�	"����	\����	�
	��	������	7	*�������	7:;6	�	+��	!�����
�	��
��	�
�	*���������	F��������
��	&*F'	
���	����	��}������	��	�������	��	����	�����	��
�	�����#	�����
�	�������	�
�	4����

	�������	����	

viii. In Compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Circular No. SEC/
�����������������������!"�#����$%!&'"(�������)&�*+,�*+,��&�7&9��&&��;&<��=����'"��+�!(+'�!"���!�
the ensuing 42nd AGM.  
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�"�(��=�("=&��"(����&��"�>�"���?��+"���9��*"9!�"�"9�

*��	��	�����
	�
������	������	��	���	�������	$������
	!��	��3����	4����
	"�
��	�
	6	��
���	7:;6#	����	
����	�����#	[#	�
	���

	�������#	�������	���	$����	��	���	�����	��	*��������	�
	�	"��������	7:;6	�
�	�
	�����	
��	�������
�	��	����
����
�	��	���	������������^	������������#	[	������	�������	���	���	��	����	�7nd Annual 
General Meeting and submit the Annual Report containing Audited Financial Statements thereon for the year 
ended 30 June 2018 for your consideration and approval.

������
�#	��	����	����	�
�	��	���	���	�����
�����#	��	�����	��	����	��	���������3�	���	�
��������	�����	��	
���	%���	$������
�	!��	�����	�����	��	���	��	����	���	�����	��	�
������	���������	��	���	�������	$������
	
and also rest his soul in peace. 

We are delighted to inform you that in the year 2017-2018, ACME maintained its sustainable advancement 
�
	�����	��	���
�

�	���	�����#	
��	�������

	����	���	�
�	���<�	���
�

�	��	�����	 [
������

	��	���
�

�	
���	 �����	 �������	 ���	 ������
�	 ��������	 �
	 ���������
�	 ��	 
�����	 ��
������	 {�	 �������	 ����	 ���	 ������	
development of ACME including the overall function of the Company alongside the management of the 
$����
�	�����	��	�
�����	��	����	������	�����������
	�
�	��

�����
�		

F��������������	�
������	��	��

������	���	
���
	��

�<��
���	����	���	����	<��	������	_���	7:;7	��	7:;�#	
����������	<��	�����	$�����
�	�

���	X�����	4���	&$�X4'	��	���	�
������	���	;��	�
�	����	7:;�	��	7:;�#	
����������	 �����	 �����	 $�X4	 ���	 7;��	 �������

	 ��	 �
������	 �������#	 ������	 ��3�	 ��	 F��������������	 ���	
reach about BDT 330,000 million by 2020. According to Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics, the industry has 
contributed 1.85% to the GDP in 2016-2017. Pharmaceutical industry of Bangladesh is largely protected from 
external competition, as there is a restriction regarding import of similar drugs that is manufactured locally. 
This industry is the second largest contributor to national exchequer. At the same time, the industry provides 
���	���
���	�����	������	&
���'	�
��
����	��������
��	

�����	 �
	 ���	 �������	 ��	 7:;��7:;6#	 �
	 ������	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ��	 *��������#	 [	 �����	 �������	 ��	 ��
����	
���
�����
���
�	 ���	 ��
��������
	 ����	 ��	 ���	 ��
�
���
�	 ����	 �
�	 ���������	 ��	 ���	 ������	 ���	 �����	
��������	 �������	 [	 ����	 �����	 ����	 ��	 �������	 ��	 ���������	 
��������	 ��	 ���	 ������	 "�����������#	 $��������#	
����������	F��������
���#	��
����#	"��������#	��

������	"���������	�
�	]����

�	$��������
	&�"]$'#	*����	
"����	]����

�	%������	&*"]'#	$�����
�

	"����	]����

�	%������	&$"]'#	$�
����	*���������	��

������	%���	
&$*�%'#	4�
������	��	w��
�	"����	$����
���	�
�	_����	&4w"$'#	�����
��	�����	��	4���
��	&��4'#	X����
��
�	
Agencies and all concerned for their continued support and co-operation. 

[	����	����	�����	������	��	���	�$!]	������	����	������	���	��������	��
�����	��	���	������	$������
	�
�	
pray for his eternal peace.   

+��
�	���	���	����	����	������	�
�	��
����	��
�����

Nagina Afzal Sinha   
Chairman 
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�"�(��=�("=&��"(���?��+"���9��*"9!�"�"9�

It gives me immense pleasure to report our Annual result for the third time as a listed Company.

\
	������	��	���	!�
�
���
�#	[	�����	����	��	���
�	���	��	���	������������#	�
�������#	��
�
���
�	����	�
�	
�����	������������	��	���	$����
��	[	����	����	���	�������
�	��	���
�	���	���	�
	������	��	������	�
�	!������	��	
the Board for attending at the 42nd Annual General Meeting of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. 

*���

	���	����#	���	$����
�	��������	������
����	
�����	�
�	���	�����	����
��	�����	�*+	;�#6;|��;	������
�	
*�������	 �����	 ��
��
��	 ��	 �����
	 ��	 ���	 ���	 ������	 ����	 �~����	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ����
���	 +��	 $����
�	 ��	
��
��
������	������

	����	���	����
��

	���	[
���
����
��	!������	*���

	���	����#	���	������	����
��

	�*+	
�;��:�	������
	��	�
��
��	�*+	��:��7	������
	�
	��������	����#	����	;��;7�	
������	{�	���	����	�������	����#	���	

�����	��������
	�����	�
���	�
��	�	
��	�����	�
�	�
����	���	$����
�	��	���
	�	
��	�������	��	��������
	
����	�
	���������
	�
�	���
����#	����	
��	����
���
�

$�
������

	���	�
������	�������#	���
��	��������	�
�	������	����
�	��	����	��������	�
�	
�����#	+��	�$!]	
%�����������	%���	���

��	��	�
�������	�������	
��	���������	*���

	���	����	7:;6#	���	$����
�	���	���������	
�����	��
��������
	�����	��	"������	�	�����
�#	F�
������
	�
�	����
���
	��	"����	*���
��	�
��	�
�	���	���������
	
��	���������	��������	����	��	�������	�����
	����������	����������	\��	�����	�
	7:;6�7:;�	��	��	������������	���
��	
�����	
��	��������	�����	����	���

	��

�<��
�	��
�<��	��	�����
��	�
�	��	��
��
��	��	������3�	���	�����
�	
����������	�������#	���	��
��������
	�����	��	������	F�������������	[

�����
��	&�F['	�������	���	�������	���
	
�������	�����	����	����	��	���������	�����
	���	����������

*���

	���	<
�
����	����	7:;��7:;6#	77	&+��
��	+��'	
��	��������	����	���
	�����		����	���	������

	�������	
���������	 ��	 ���	 $����
�#	 ���������
	 ��������	 �
�������	 �
�	 �������

	 ���������	 ��	 �$!]	 ����	 �
	 �����	 �
�	

�����	���	���
	����
����	+���	��	���	��

	��	���	
������	
�����	����	���������	���	�
������	��	���	�
�������	
through accomplishment of our strategic goals and objectives.

���

	���	!�
�
�

	*�������	��	���	$����
�#	[	�����	����	��	������	���	���	����	��	����	��
��
��	��	�������
�	
our sacred duties at the optimum level for the highest interest of the Company by means of good governance 
�
�	���
�����
���	{�	
����	��������	���	������	�����
����������	����	��
���	��	���������
����	���������
�	
��	�����	������	�����
�	�������	����������
#	����
	���������
�#	��������
#	������#	�
����
��
���	 ������#	

����
��	���
�����	�
�	����������	+��	��������
�	��	���	$����
�	�����	��	��
��
���	����	�����	��������
�	�
�	
sophistication in order to drive optimum return on your investment. Despite of several obstructive situations, 
�$!]	
����	������	�
	����	����	�
	���	����	���
	~:	�����`	����
��	������	������	�����	�������	����	��
��
����	

�����	�
�	���������
��	"�#	[	�����	����	��	������	���	���	������������	����	�����	�
������
��	�
	�$!]	���	����#	
secure and full of possibilities.

Finally, I appreciate the leadership provided by the Board of Directors and Management of the Company and also 
�������	��	
��������	��	���	���	������������#	�
�����

	[
�������#	"�����������#	$��������#	��
����#	!������	
F��������
���	 �
�	 �����	 ���������
��	 ���	 �����	 �������������	 ��������	 *��������`	 4�����#	 ��������`	 4�����#	
�������	_�
�
����	"������
��	��
�����	����	�����	��	���	�����
��	����	�������	�������	��	���	���	����	�������	
\�	������#	���	�������	�
�	���������	���������	��	���	$����
�	���	���	���	�������	��	����	���<���������

��	 �	 �����������#	 ���	 ����	 ��
��
������	 ���������	 ���	 �
��������	 ����	 ���	 ����	 ������	 ��	 ������#	 ��	 ���	

�������	��	���	���	����	��
<��
���

{���	����	��
����#

Mizanur Rahman Sinha
Managing Director
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS

Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha
Chairman

Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha is a Director of The ACME 
%�����������	 %���	 ��
��	 ;�6;�	 "��	 ���	 �������	
as Chairman of the Company on 5 September 
7:;6	 ����	 ���	 ������	 ��	 ���	 �����
�	 ������	
Chairman Late Afzal-Ur-Rahman Sinha. She is also 
a shareholder of Sinha Printers Ltd. and The ACME 
Agrovet & Beverages Ltd. She is engaged in various 
������	�������	�
�	����������	�����������

She has a proven capability of contributing values 
in both family and business areas.

Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha
Managing Director

Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha obtained his graduation 
��
���	 �
	 $�������	 ����	 �
��������	 ��	 *�����	
����	 
��������
#	 ��	 ���
��	 ���	 ���
	 �����	 ��
�	
%������	�
	;�~�	�
�	������	�����	�
	������
�	��
���	
positions. In the year 1975, as per the desire of his 
father i.e. the founder of The ACME Laboratories 
Ltd., he joined in The ACME Laboratories Ltd. 
���	 ������������	 �����	 �
�	 ����	 ����������	
made the organization achieve the milestone 
in the Pharmaceuticals industry of the country.  
Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha is the Chairman of Kalyar 
F����
�

	 %������#	 ������	 4������	 %������#	 "�
��	
Fabrics Limited, Sinha Knit Industries Limited and 
Sinha Knit and Denims Limited. He is also the Director 
of The ACME Agrovet & Beverages Limited, Sinha 
Printers Limited and ACMUNIO International Limited. 
The respective organizations have achieved very 
good reputation both in domestic and international 
������	�����
	�	�����	������	��	����� He is popular 
���

	���	������	���
�����
	��	�	�������	������	
������	 �
�	 �����
��������	 ���	 ���	 ��

�
�����	
��
��������
	�������	���	�������

	��	���	�����
	
masses through development of infrastructure, 
construction of schools, buildings and roads.  He is 
����	�������	 �
	���	��
	��
������
��#	%������

#	
"����������
#	 !�
���
�
�	 �
�	 ��	 ���	 �������	
!�����	 ��	 F�������
�	 ���	 ��
��������	 �����	
starting from 1996 and during the period 2001-
2006, he served as state minister of health and 
������	�������	��
�����	��	
����
��
�	��	������`�	
republic of Bangladesh.
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Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha
Deputy Managing Director 

Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha has a B.Sc. in 
$��������	 ����	 �
��������	 ��	 *����#	 �
	 !�"��	 �
	
F�������������	 $��������	 ����	 �����	 *�����	
"����	�
��������#	_��
�#	�����	*�����	�
�	�	F��*�	
from University of Georgia, Athens, Georgia. 
Since receiving his Ph.D., Dr. J. R. Sinha has done 
7	�����	��	�������������	����#	�
�	����	�
	!������	
$����
�	 ��	 Z��
�
��#	 Z��
�
��	 $����
������	
University, Richmond, Virginia and one year in 
University of Missouri, Columbia, Missouri, both in 
��
������	 �
�	 �
��������	 ����������	 _������

	 ���	
�������������	 �������
��	 *��	 "�
��	 ���	 �
������	
in research and teaching for 29 years in several 
academic institutions in the United States. His 
expertise includes teaching General, Organic and 
Analytical Chemistry. His outstanding evaluation 
��	 ���	 ���������#	 �����#	 �
�	 �����
��	 ����	 ����	
����	 �����<��	 ��	 ���	 �������	 ��	 �
	 ����������
�	
Dr. Sinha has been an active member of American 
Chemical Society, Rho Chi Honor Society, and 
Sigma Xi Honor Society. 
*��	 "�
��	 ����	 7	 �����	 ��	 ����������	 �����	 ����	
���	�
��������	 �
	���	��	"�	�
�	������	����	����	��	
�$!]	 ����	 ;���	 ��	 ;���	 �
�	 <
����	 ���
��	 �$!]	
�����
�
���	 �
	 7::|�	 ��	 ���	 �������	 �
������	 �
	
ACME activities during the period 1997 to 2003 
�
�����

	�����

	�
	�$!]	����

	�����	��������	
Given his limitations during his tenure in ACME, 
Dr. Sinha has provided active leadership, training, 
planning and supervising personnel to exceed 
�����	 ��������
��	 
����#	 �����

	 ���	 <����#	
��
��������

#	�
�	�������

	�����
�����������

Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha
Director

!���	 w���
���	 !�3�
	 "�
��#	 ����	 ��	 !��	 !�3�
��	
Rahman Sinha is the Chairman of J M Sinha 
Agriculture Food Processing Industries Limited. 
She is also Director of The ACME Agrovet & 
������
��	 %������#	 ������	 F����
�

	 %������#	
and Kalyar Replica Limited. Besides, Mrs. Mizan 
��	 �	 ������	 �
������
���	 �����	 ���	 
���
	 ���	 �
	
�������
���	��	
���	�
�	����	�	������
��	�
	���	
������	����	�
	�����	���	������	

Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha is also the member of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
of the Company. 
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�(��@�K+���9����P&

Nominee Director 

Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq has completed his B. 
Com (Hon’s) and M. Com in Accounting 
����	 ���	 �
��������	 ��	 *�����	 ��	 ���	
joined in the Investment Corporation of 
Bangladesh (ICB) as Managing Director 
on 10 August 2017. He started his career 
��	 �	 "�
���	 \�����	 �
	 [$�	 �
	 7�	 \������	
;�6�	 �
�	 ������	 ������
�	 �������
	 �
	 ���	
same organization. Before his joining, he 
acted as Managing Director in Rajshahi 
������	 �

���
	 ��
�	 &4����'#	 ����

	 ���	
�������	 ����#	 ��	 ������	 ������
�	 ��
��	 �
�	
Financial Institutions. Earlier, he served 
as Managing Director (Current Charge) 
and Deputy Managing Director at Agrani 
��
�	 %���	 [
	 �������
	 ��	 ����#	 ��3�	 "�
���	
��}	 ���	 �����

	 ��	 X�
����	 !�
�
��	
�
	 ��

������	 *��������
�	 ��
�	 %���	
&�*�%'	 �
�	 4�������	 ������	 �

���
	 ��
�	
(RAKUB). He also served as CEO in ICB 
Securities Trading Company Ltd. 
He has been contributing  his professional 
expertise as the Chairman of  ICB Capital 
Management Ltd. Apart from that, he is also 
serving  as the Director of British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh Co. Ltd. (BATBC), 
�
����	F����	X�
������
	�
�	*����������
	
Company Ltd., Aramit Ltd., Aramit Thai 
Aluminum Ltd., ACI Ltd., Industrial and 
Infrastructure Development Finance 
Company Ltd.(IIDFC), Linde Bangladesh 
Ltd., GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Ltd. 
(GSK), Renata Ltd., Bangladesh Krishi 
X������
�	 ]
�����
�	 +����	 &��X]+'#	
Credit Rating Information and Services Ltd. 
&$4["%'#	 "��
����	 ��
�	 %���#	 �����
��	 +��	
Company Ltd., The Peninsula Chittagong 
%���#	 "��
����	 ��
�	 "���������	 %���#	
Apex Foot Wear Ltd., Apex Tannery Ltd., 
��

������	 [
�������	 ��	 $������	 !�����	
&�[$!'#	+��	[
�������	��	��
����	��

������	
(IBB), SBL Capital Management Ltd., RSRM 
Ltd., Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. 
(CDBL)  including some other Organization 
as Director.
He is also the member of Audit Committee 
and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) of the Company. 
Being a Managing Director of the Investment 
Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB), he 
joined as nominee Director of The ACME 
Laboratories Ltd. on 11 September 2017. 

Syed Shahed Reza
Independent Director

Syed Shahed Reza has obtained BA 
(Hons) in Political Science, M.A. in Public 
����
��������
	 ����	 *����	 �
���������	 ��	
then proceeded for service to the Saudi 
Arabian as Senior Executive (Finance, 
Accounts and Administration) at the 
PARSONS Ltd, an USA based multi-national 
$����
�#	 �����	 ���	 �	 $�
�����
�	 ��	 ���	
Saudi Government Royal Commission 
���	 ��
��	 F������	 ����	 ;����;�6��	 ����	
returning to Bangladesh, he joined 
��

������	 !�
�����	 ��	 _����

	 ������	 �
	
9 June 2009 as Secretary and Ambassador 
��	���	"����	��	������	�
�	���	4�������	��	
Yemen. He served Bangladesh Embassy in 
������	��	�����������
Presently, he has been contributing at 
ACME’s Board as an Independent Director. 
��	 ��	 ��
��
��	 �����	 �����
�������	 �
�	
sport organizer. Currently discharging 
his responsibility in National Chancellor 
(Bangladesh Chapter) International 
Association of Educators for World Peace 
(IAEWP), NGO UN (ECOSOC) UNDP, UNICEF, 
UNESCO and UNCEO; Member of the 
Olympic Council of Asia (OCA) International 
Relations Committee since 2011; Trustee 
member of Bangladesh Foundation for 
Development  and Research on Liberation 
War and BANGABANDHU; Founder Joint 
Secretary  General of Bangladesh Golf 
_��������
	 �	 Z���	 F������
�	 ��	 +����
��	
Federation Bangladesh; Founder Vice 
President of Bangladesh Ragbi Association; 
Member Bangladesh Handball Federation. 
��	 ���	 ���	 ������	 �������
�	 ��	 *����	
$���	 %���	 ���	 ��
��������	 ���	 ������	 ��	
has Extensive experience in management, 
����������#	 ��
�
�3����
��	 ��������
���	
and diplomacy arena at National level.  
Mr. Reza extensively travelled all over the 
�����	�
�	������������	�
	
���	
�����	��	
conferences and training program at home 
and in abroad. He is also the chairman of 
nomination and remuneration committee 
and member of the audit committee of The  
ACME Laboratories Ltd.

�����&�K+��P�
�"����Q
Independent Director

!��	 _��3��	 ��}��#	 _$�	 ��	 �	 _�����	
Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). She 
obtained master degree in Management 
����	 ���	 �
��������	 ��	 *�����	 	 $����
���#	
���	 ��	 �����

	 ��	 �	 F���
��	 ��	 _�!]"	 �	
R, Chartered Accountants. FAMES & R 
Chartered Accountants is a merged Firm of 
Zaman Hoque & Co. and Shahadat Rashid 
and Co.   She joined in ACME’s Board as 
an Independent Director on 9 September 
2014 and also serving as Chairman of Audit 
Committee of the Company. Previously 
���	������	��	�4�$#	�	��
��
��	�
�	�����	
���
���	�X\	�
	���	������	�4�$	�
���������	
Action on Disability and Development in 
Bangladesh (ADD); ACNABIN, a Chartered 
�����
��
��`	 <��	 �
�	 {����	 ��
�	 ��	
various capacities. 
She has Extensive experience in 
management and leadership. She has 
����

	 ����
���
�	 �
	 [�"^[_4"#	 ["�#	
[
���
��	 $�
����	 "�����#	 $����
�	 %��#	
�"]$	4����	�	%���#	$��������	X����
�
��#	
Management Accounting Principles, ERP 
system and Development of Standard 
Operating Procedures. 
!��	��}��	��	����	���������	�
�	������������	
in good number of conferences and 
training programs at home and in abroad.
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LIST OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Sl. # Name Designation in the Company Designation in the 
Management Committee

01. Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Managing Director Chairman
02. Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Deputy Managing Director Vice Chairman 

03. Mr. Md. Hasibur Rahman Additional Deputy  Managing 
Director Member

04. Mr. Md. Ferdous Khan Director-Sales and Distribtion Member
05. Mr. A.K.M. Mushiur Rahman Khan Director –Head of Internal Audit Member
06. Mr. A. B. M. Imtiaz Ahmed Khilji Technical Director –Plant Member
07. Mr. Md. Humayun Kabir Head of International Business Member
08. *��	"�����	!�������	4����
 Director- API Project Member
09. Mr. Mohammad Shariful Islam X�
����	!�
�
���	!������

 Member
10. !��	!��	4�<}��	[����#	_$" Company Secretary Member Secretary
11. Mr. Tushar Kanti Kundu Head of HR Member
12. !��	$��������	"��������	]���� Head of Information Technology Member
13. Mr. Md. Arshadul Kabir, FCA Head of Finance & Accounts Member 
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VISION

To ensure Health, Vigour and Happiness for all.

MISSION STATEMENT
Our 
holistic 
approach is 
to ensure Health, 
Vigour and Happiness 
for all by manufacturing 
ethical drugs and medicines of the 
��
����	}������	��	���������	�����	�
�	
����
��

	�
	���	�����	�
�	
�����	�������

{�	����	���������	��	����
���	����	���	�������#	
healthcare professionals, all other customers, our 
���������	�
�	�����
�3�	����	�
����
��
���	�������

16



17

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8



PURPOSE

Business is the heritage of Sinha family and in fact, 
����	����	�
�	��	���	��
��
��	����	��������	�
	���	���
	
subcontinent. But founder of the Company Late  Hamidur 
4����
	"�
��	����
��	 	��	 	��		�����	���

		��	���		����	 	������		
of  the  soil. Accordingly, he planned to establish a  Pharmaceuticals 
Company and his beloved half also contributed on the same. Eventually, 
in the year 1954, the historic moment for Sinha family, the founder 
�����������	 �	 ���������������	 ��
���
	 �����	 ���	 ��
������	 ��	 �	 F������	
Limited Company namely The ACME Laboratories Ltd. and set its purpose 
in mission statements as to ensure Health, Vigour and Happiness for all 
by manufacturing ethical drugs and medicine of the highest quality at 
���������	�����	�
�	����
��

	�
	���	��������	�
�	
�����	�������	{�	����	
���������	��	����
���	����	���	�������#	����������	���������
���#	���	�����	
���������#	 ���	 ���������	 �
�	 �����
�3�	 ����	 �
����
��
���	 �������
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CORE VALUES

\��	$����
�	������	���	���	�������	���	���	���
��

	�
�	�����
��	+���	���	���	����	��	����	����	��	��
�����	
in the past, present and future. We do business on the basis of common values. Our success is based on 
��������	 �����#	 ����	 ������#	 ������	 ��	 ��
#	 ������������#	 �
��
����	 �
�	 �������
���	 +����	 ������	 �������
�	
���	�����
�	�
	���	�����	�����

	����	���������	�
�	����
���	����
���	��	����	��	�
	���	��������	�
�	���	
������������
	����	����	������
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IMPORTANT MILESTONES
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IMPORTANT MILESTONES
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IMPORTANT MILESTONES
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SOLID DOSAGES UNIT 
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\��	 �����	 ��	 *��������	 ��	 ��
���	 �
���
���	 ��	 �������	 !�
�
���
�	 \�������
�	 ����	 ��	 ��
������	 �
�	
����������	��	["\	�����<�����
	�����	

QMS OPERATIONS

QMS department under Corporate operations provides a variety of professional and management support 
across the organization in maintaining suitable system by the means of strategic integration of ISO, 
+�!#	 ����
���	 �������
��	 ��������	 �
�	 �����	 ����	 ���������	 ����	 ���	 �����
	 ��������	 ���	 ���	 ����
����	 +���	
department incessantly contributes to the implementation of business metrics & performance management; 
Organization’s re-structuring & change management and support to the business-driven HR transformation 
����	����	\�
�
�3����
`�	����
	$������	�����	�����	�
�	���

��	��	���	 �������
�����
	��	\�
�
�3����
`�	
������	�
�	��������
����	��	�$!]#	�!"	����������	���	���������
�	�
�	�����
������
	��	���	\�
�
�3����
`�	
core values, vision, mission and ethical behaviors.
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BOARD’S STRUCTURE AND ITS ROLE 

Composition of the Board

The Board of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. is comprised of seven (7) Directors, including one Nominee Director from 
[
������
�	$���������
	��	��

������	&[$�'	�
�	���	[
����
��
�	*���������	$������
	��	�������	����	���

��	
the members. All the members of the Board of Directors of the Company are highly seasoned professionals, 
�������#	������������
���#	���������	�������#	�����
�����#	���������	�
�	�������	�
	�����	����������	���
�	�
�	
����	����	�����}������	����
����	�
������
��

	�����	���	$����
�`�	����
���	������	�����	�����
��	����	���	
���������	��	�������	�
�	����
���
�#	���
��	��	���	�������	��������	��	�������	�
�	��������

Role of the Board

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and accountable 
to the Shareholders. The Board is responsible for formulating strategy, policy and ensuring that the business 
����������	���	���
���	����
�������	�
�	����������	��
��������	+��	*��������	����	����������	 �
������	�����	
���	 $����
�`�	 <
�
����	 �������
	 �
�	 �
����	 ����	 ���	 ����������#	 �����
��	 �
�	 �����	 ��
�
���
�	 ���	 �������	
to adequate control. The Board also ensures that ACME’s Policies, Procedures and Codes of Conduct are 
implemented and maintained and the Company adheres to generally accepted principles for good governance 
�
�	��������	��
����	��	$����
�	�����������

Role of Chairman

��	���	��������	��	����������
	��	���	$����
�#	���	!������	��	���	�����	�������	���	$������
	���	��	�����
�����	
��	 ����	���	�����	�
�	��	�
����	 ���	��������
���	��	 ���	 ��
����
�	��	 ���	������	 [�	 ��	 ���	�����
��������	��	 ���	
Chairman to see that the Annual General Meeting, Board Meeting and other Meetings are dully convened and 
��
��������	�
	�������
��	����	���	$����
���	���#	;���	��	�
�	�����	����������	
������
��#	4����	�
�	4�
������
�	
before its proceeds to transact business. The Chairman should then conduct the proceedings of the meetings and 
ensure that only those items of business as have been set out in the agenda are transected and generally in the 
�����	�
	�����	���	�����	������	�
	���	�
�
���	+��	$������
	������	�
�����
�	�����������
�	�
�	������	�
�	
asses the sense of the meeting. The Chairman should ensure that the proceedings of the meeting are correctly 
��������	�
�	�
	���

	��#	��^���	���	�
�����	��	�������	��	��^���	�����	<��	

Role of Managing Director

The roles of the Board and Managing Director are distinguished and description of respective roles and 
�����
����������	 ��	 �������	 �����������#	 ���	 ���	 �
	 �����
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�	
better Corporate Governance. The Managing Director is the authoritative head for day-to-day management in 
ACME. He acts for the best interest of the Company and ensures that the Company operates its business as per 
���	��������	��	����������
�	�������
�	���	����	��	���	�����	�
�	"�����������#	��	����	��	�������

	��	$����
�`�	
Policies, Procedures and applicable regulatory legislations.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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\
	 ������	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ��	 *��������	 �
�	 !�
�
���
�	 +���#	 ��	 �����	 ����	 ��	 �������	 ���	 ���	 ��	 ���	 �7nd 
Annual General Meeting of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. According to the Section 184 of the Companies Act 
1994, Rule 12 (and the schedule there under) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987; BSEC 
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Standards- 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” as adopted by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
��

������	&[$��'#	_�
�
����	4������

	���#	7:;��	��	����	���	��������	��	�����	��������	���	*��������`	4�����	
and Auditors’ Report in respect of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PROFIT AND ITS APPROPRIATION

Particulars
�;�X�+9��+��+&9�

2017-2018 2016-2017
���	F��<�	����	+��      1,426.571       1,397.850 
Adjustment for depreciation on revaluation surplus            85.266             85.839 
F��<�	����
��	�������	����	��������	�����      4,039.288       3,303.424 
X&!���Z(&	!�Q[�+��'�"�\&(��77(&7(+�!+&9 ��������������� ��������]^]�����
Appropriation
Final Cash Dividend for the year 2016-2017 (Comparative year 2015-2016)        (740.606)         (740.606)
Tax Holiday Reserve                     -               (7.218)
��&�+9>��"!�+9"��_�(9+9>���!�!="�`"�(�"9���'"\&("�7(&7&�"���+[+�"9�� �������^������� �������������^^�
Proposed cash dividend for the year 2017-2018 @ 35%        (740.606)         (740.606)
�"!�+9"��"�(9+9>���,"(�Z(&7&�"���+[+�"9� ��������k������ ����������^�k^��

DIVIDEND
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the Company and subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the Board of Directors 
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INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND POSSIBLE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

Pharmaceuticals Industry is one of the success stories of Bangladesh in the last three decades. Bangladesh 
had to depend largely for medicines on multinational companies and imports in the 1970s and early 1980s. 
���#	�����	$����
���	����	������	�6	�����
�	��	��������	����
�	�����	����
�	�"*	7	������
	��	�*+	;~#:::	
crore. According to insider of the industry, Bangladesh’s Pharmaceuticals Industry is going to be a major 
������	�
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���	������	��	������

The present contribution of Pharmaceutical sector to Bangladesh’s economy emerging to be the highest 
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������	F����
���#	
the Pharmaceuticals Industry of Bangladesh meets 98% of the local demand and export to more than 125 
���
������	��
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������	����	����	�����	��	����
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medicine. 

The WTO-TRIPS Council, on 6 November 2015 granted the Least Developed Countries (LDCs) exemptions 
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expansion and development in this industry.
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currencies from Bangladesh.  In order to address the issue, the government has already handed over 42 plots 
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	increase in Imported Material cost. The Management is trying their best to 
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During the Financial year 2017-2018, no extra ordinary activities occurred in the Company. 
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A DETAILED DISCUSSION ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ALONG WITH A STATEMENT SHOWING 
Q�$})X�� )QX}�_� $�� �_?QX_�� ZQ�X~�� )QX}�_� $�� X�Q)�_�X
$)�� Q)�� ;Q�
�� $�� X�Q)�Q�X
$)�� $��
ALL RELATED PARTY TRANSECTIONS  

+��	$����
�	�������	���	�	
�����	��	���
������
�	����	�������	�������	�
	���	
�����	������	��	����
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on arm’s length basis. The Directorship of the company is mostly in common. The nature of the transaction 
�
�	�����	��������	�����	��	����
	�����/

Name of the 
Company Nature of Transaction

2017-2018 2016-2017
Value of

transaction
during the 

year

Balance as 
at 30 June 

2018

Value of
transaction 
during the 

year

Balance as at 
30 June 2017

Sinha Printers Ltd.
Local Supply Received 550,481,583 (190,819,988) 445,803,332 (139,196,108)
Provide Services & Others 294,650 - 299,133 -

ACMUNIO Int. Ltd.

Advance - 96,479,473 (5,000,000) 96,479,473
Finished Goods Purchased - - 68,379 -
Rent on Investment 
Property 6,462,000 12,924,000 6,462,000 6,462,000

The ACME Agrovet & 
Beverages Ltd. Local Supply 34,300,890 - 1,259,220 (1,259,220)

������	F����
�

	%��� Local Supply 85,935,564 (4,300,597) 4,712,459 (3,606,808)
Kalyar Replica Ltd. Local Supply 10,237,502 (1,440,525) 236,998 (674,158)

A STATEMENT OF UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS RAISED THROUGH PUBLIC ISSUES

The ACME Laboratories Ltd. accorded the consent from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission 
&�"]$'	 �
	 ;�	 !����	 7:;~	 ���	 �����

	 ���	 �������	 �����
�	 [
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�����
	 ��	
�������

	|&�����'	��������/	

Sl. No. Name of the projects _�!+��!"��Z(&�"%!��&�!���
9�;�X�%(&("�
a. Steroid and Hormone  135.80
b. Oncology 114.10
c. Ayurvedic, Modern Herbal and Nutraceuticals 174.55
d. IPO Expenses 6.83

   
Considering the facts and circumstances, the Board in its 64th Meeting recommended to change the use of 
[F\	��������	�
�	�����������	���	���	���	���	�������

	��������/

Sl # Name of the Projects 
and others

Estimated Project Costs 
�
9�;�X�%(&("� Date of implementation 

a) Steroid and Hormone  135.80 {����
	7	&���'	�����	����	�������

	��	
IPO Funds, i.e. 2018

b) Penicillin 40.00 Within 31 March, 2018

c) Active Pharmaceuticals 
Ingredients (API) Project 89.00 {���	7�|	�����	����	
����

	���������
	

from Ministry of Industries. 

d) 4������
�	��	��
�	
�������

 136.00 Done 

e) IPO Expenses 6.83 Done
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Accordingly, the shareholders in its 40th	�X!	����	�
	�	��������	7:;~	��������	���	��������	�����	���	
dully intimated to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission and other regulators as per condition of 
the Letter of Consent of the BSEC. 

+��	������	��	[F\	��������	��	�
	|:	w�
�	7:;6	���	
���
	�����/	

Name of The 
Projects & Others

Estimated cost 
for Projects 

Implementation 
as per resolution 

of 40th AGM (BDT in 
�+��+&9�

Amount 
used up to 

31 May 2018
(BDT in 
�+��+&9�

Expenditure 
incurred 

during the 
Month of 

June 2018
(BDT in 
�+��+&9�

Amount 
used up 

to 30 June 
2018

(BDT in 
�+��+&9�

Un-Utilized 
Balance 
Amount 
(BDT in 
�+��+&9�

Steroid and Hormone 1,358.00 1,140.32 114.00 1,254.32 103.68
Penicillin  400.00 246.71 Nil 246.71 153.29
Active 
Pharmaceuticals 
Ingredients (API)

1,355.23 102.82 Nil 102.82 1,252.41

4������
�	��	��
�	
�������

 1,360.00 1,360.00 Nil 1,360.00 Nil

IPO Expenses     68.29 68.29 Nil 68.29 Nil

The Board of Directors of the Company in its 93rd meeting re-arranged the use of IPO proceeds plan subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in its 42nd Annual General Meeting. A detail report on rearrangement of IPO 
Proceeds has been presented in the separate report in the Page # 47.

AN EXPLANATION IF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS DETERIORATE AFTER THE COMPANY GOES FOR INITIAL 
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morefully explained in the Page No. 33  under the head of Financial Highlights for last 5 years. 

AN EXPLANATION ON ANY SIGNIFICANT VARIANCE THAT OCCURS BETWEEN QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCES AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

*���

	���	<
�
����	����	7:;��7:;6#	�

���	_�
�
����	"������
��	��	������	�
	��
��
�
��	����	���	���������	
_�
�
����	F�������
��	��	���	$����
��	��	����#	
�	��

�<��
�	�����
��	���	���
	��������	������
	���������	
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements.

A STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the <
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year 2016-2017. The Company did not pay any remuneration to its Independent Directors except sitting fees 
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Amount in BDT 
Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017

Directors 28,800,000 28,800,000 

Independent Directors -   -   

A STATEMENT THAT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED BY THE MANAGEMENT OF THE ISSUER 
�$�ZQ)~�Z�_�_)X��Q
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CHANGES IN EQUITY
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A STATEMENT THAT PROPER BOOKS OF ACCOUNT OF THE ISSUER COMPANY HAVE BEEN MAINTAINED
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STATEMENT THAT APPROPRIATE ACCOUNTING POLICIES HAVE BEEN CONSISTENTLY APPLIED IN 
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THAT THE ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ARE BASED ON 
REASONABLE AND PRUDENT JUDGMENT

Accounting policies adopted by the Company have been consistently applied in preparation of the Financial 
Statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. The 
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operations of the Company.
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OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ANY DEPARTURE THERE FROM HAS BEEN ADEQUATELY DISCLOSED 

The International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), Securities 
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disclosed.

A STATEMENT THAT THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL IS SOUND IN DESIGN AND HAS BEEN EFFECTIVELY 
IMPLEMENTED AND MONITORED
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the Company and dully examined by the internal and external auditors. The Company continuously give due 
emphasis for further improvement of internal control system, if any, can be done. 
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HAVE EFFECTIVE MEANS OF REDRESS

As a constant policy of the Company, Interest of Minority shareholders have been protected meticulously by 
the management. The management protects interest of Minority shareholders from abusive actions by or in 
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of redress in place.
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A STATEMENT THAT THERE IS NO SIGNIFICANT DOUBT UPON THE ISSUER COMPANY’S ABILITY TO 
CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN
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�
����	
statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis. A detail statement regarding the 
ability to continue as a going concern has been discussed in the Page No. 153.

AN EXPLANATION THAT SIGNIFICANT DEVIATIONS FROM THE LAST YEAR’S OPERATING RESULTS OF THE  
ISSUER  COMPANY  SHALL  BE  HIGHLIGHTED  AND  THE  REASONS  THEREOF  SHALL  BE EXPLAINED
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Financial Highlights
For Last 5 Years

Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014
�=�("=&��"(���_
�+!`�#
Share Capital 2,116.02 2,116.02 2,116.02 1,616.02 1,616.02
Share premium 5,127.60 5,127.60 5,127.60 1,605.07 1,605.07
Revaluation Surplus 5,402.71 5,487.67 5,642.93 5,320.07 5,429.80
X��
^&%���'	�
	!���������	
Securities (Unrealized) 8.72 6.23 2.25 1.82 0.84

Tax Holiday Reserve 179.46 179.46 172.25 139.86 91.01
Retained Earnings 4,810.52 4,039.29 3,303.42 2,689.79 1,949.43
X&!����=�("=&��"(���_
�+!`�# �]�k����� �k���k��^ �k��k���] ����]��k� ���k����]
Non Current Liabilities 4,615.51 3,675.91 3,958.45 4,904.88 3,057.68
Total ����k���� ���k����� ��������� �k��]]��� ���]���^�

Application of Fund
Property, Plant and Equipment 21,105.68 18,220.23 17,240.11 16,027.23 15,511.90
Intangible Assets 0.12 0.16 0.20 0.25 0.29
Investment in Shares 34.89 32.41 19.86 7.12 6.14
Investment Property 21.34 23.10 26.19 26.19 26.19
Current Assets 11,462.21 11,671.33 11,603.36 7,198.98 6,635.06
Current Liabilities (10,363.70) (9,315.04) (8,566.79) (6,982.26) (8,429.73)
Total ����k���� ���k����� ��������� �k��]]��� ���]���^�

Financial Result
Revenue 14,813.91 13,576.32 12,644.91 11,496.41 10,217.93
Cost of Goods Sold 8,942.40 8,039.83 7,770.61 7,195.00 6,237.80
X����	F��<� 5,871.52 5,536.49 4,874.30 4,301.42 3,980.14
F��<�	������	+������
 1,954.84 2,035.55 1,402.10 1,349.43 1,204.84
F��<�	����	+������
 1,426.57 1,397.85 1,101.27 921.92 893.89
Change in Turnover (%) 9.12% 7.37% 9.99% 12.51% 13.87%
Change in Cost of goods sold (%) 11.23% 3.46% 8.00% 15.35% 9.03%
$��

�	�
	F��<�	����	+��	&�' 2.05% 26.93% 19.45% 3.14% 76.76%

Financial Performance
Number of shares 211.60 211.60 211.60 161.60 161.60
Earning per share (EPS) in BDT 6.74 6.61 6.55 5.70 5.65
Current Ratio - (Times) 1.11 1.25 1.35 1.03 0.79
���	�������

	����	���	���	�����	
(NOCFPS) in BDT 7.46 6.70 6.25 6.50 2.85

Net Asset Value Per Share 
(NAVPS) in BDT 83.39 80.13 77.34 70.37 66.16
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AN EXPLANATION ON THE REASONS IF THE ISSUER COMPANY HAS NOT DECLARED DIVIDEND (CASH OR 
�X$�@���$��XP_�~_Q�
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the year, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended 35% Cash Dividend to its Shareholders.

BOARD’S STATEMENT TO THE EFFECT THAT NO BONUS SHARE OR STOCK DIVIDEND HAS BEEN OR SHALL 
BE DECLARED AS INTERIM DIVIDEND

During the Financial Year 2017-2018 
�	��
��	"����	��	"����	*�����
�	���	���
	��������	��	���	�����	��	
interim dividend.

THE TOTAL NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR AND ATTENDANCE BY EACH DIRECTOR
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Name of Directors Position No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended

Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha Chairman 14 10
Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha Former Chairman 14 09
Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Managing Director 14 14
Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Deputy Managing Director 14 13
Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha Director 14 12
Syed Shahed Reza Independent Director 14 9
Ms. Fouzia Haque, FCA Independent Director 14 14
Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq Nominee Director 14 10
�!��	!��	[��������3�	����
 Nominee Director 14 01

�[
������
�	$���������
	��	��

������	&[$�'	��������
	���	
���
����
	��	!��	!��	[��������3�	����
	�
	7:	
August 2017 and nomited Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq as a Nominee Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 
(ICB) in the Board of The ACME Laboratories Ltd.	�
	�����	��	!��	!��	[��������3�	����
	��	���	����	�����

A REPORT ON THE PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 30 JUNE 2018 DISCLOSING THE AGGREGATE 
)}�;_��$���PQ�_���Q?$)*��
XP�)Q�_��
�_��_XQ
?���P_�_��XQX_��;_?$���P_?��;~

A report on the pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2018 disclosing the aggregate numbers of shares (along 
����	
��������	�������'	���	������	�����/

a. Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties:

The ACME Laboratories Ltd. does not have any Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies as on 30 June 
7:;6�	�������#	�����	�������	�������	��	
��	����	�
�	������	��	���	$����
��
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'���+("%!&(����=+"\�_<"%�!+["�$�+%"(���&�7�9`��"%("!�( �̀��=+"\��+9�9%+���$�+%"(��P"���&\�
9!"(9���Q��+!�
and Compliance and their spouses and minor children:

Sl. No.  Name and Particulars Designation Number of 
holding

01. Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha Chairman 11,888,433

02 Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha Former Chairman 17,214,336
03. Mr. Fahim Sinha, S/O Late Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 430,026
04. Mrs. Sabrina Juned, D/O Late Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 430,500
05. Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Managing Director 20,426,565

06 Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha Director 10,519,744

07. Mr. Tanveer Sinha, S/O Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 429,144
08. Ms. Tasneem Sinha, D/O Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 429,694
09. Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Dy. Managing Director 4,860,696
10. Ms. Sylvana Sinha, D/O Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 7,288,866
11. Ms. Tanya Quader Sinha, D/O Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Shareholder 7,288,866
12. Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq Nominee Director of ICB 8,414,940
13. Syed Shahed Reza Independent Director N/A
14. Ms. Fouzia Haque, FCA Independent Director N/A

15. !��	 !��	 4�<}��	 [����#	 _$"	 �
�	 ���	 ������	 �
�����

	
minor children. Company Secretary N/A

16. Mr. Md. Arshadul Kabir, FCA  and his spouse including 
minor child. Head of Finance & Accounts N/A

17. Mr. A.K.M. Moshiur Rahman Khan, FCMA and his spouse 
including minor child. Head of Internal Audit N/A

Executives: 

Sl. No.  Name and Particulars Designation Number of 
holding

01. Mr. Md. Hasibur Rahman Additional Deputy Managing Director 60,180
02. Mr. Md. Ferdous Khan Director- Sales & Distribution N/A
03. Mr. A.B.M. Imtiaz Ahmed Khilji Technical Director-Plant N/A
04. *��	"�����	!�������	4����
 Director –API N/A
05. Mr. Mohammad Shariful Islam X�
����	!�
�
��	�	!������

	 N/A

�=�("=&��"(��=&��+9>�!"9�7"(%"9!�������&(��&("�[&!+9>�+9!"("�!�+9�!="�%&�7�9`��9��"��+�"��"!�+���
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COMPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDING POSITION

"���������

	F������
	��	�
	|:	w�
�	7:;6	��	���	$����
�	��	
���
	�����/

Name of the Shareholders Designation No. of Shares % of holding
Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha Chairman 11,888,433 5.62%
Mr. Afzalur Rahman Sinha Former Chairman 17,214,336 8.14%
Mr. Mizanur Rahman Sinha Managing Director 20,426,565 9.65%
Dr. Jabilur Rahman Sinha Dy. Managing Director 4,860,696 2.30%
Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha Sponsor Director 10,519,744 4.97%
Mr. Nasir-Ur-Rahman Sinha Sponsor Shareholder 6,160,405 2.91%
!���	F�����
	������	����� Sponsor Shareholder 5,401,517 2.55%
Mrs. Khurshid Jahan Dabir (Mrs. Laizu Dabir) Sponsor Shareholder 725 0.00%
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) Shareholder    8,414,940 3.98%
Institute Shareholder 61,236,070 28.94%
Foreign Shareholder 5,670,204 2.68%
General Public Shareholder 59,808,065 28.26%
Total ����k���]�� 100.00%
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INFORMATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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  Committees of the Board;
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Processing Industries Ltd. and Sanjar Aviation Ltd. She is also Director of The ACME Agrovet & Beverages Ltd., 
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Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha is also the member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the 
Company.

�(��@�K+���9����P&
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Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq has completed his B. Com (Hon’s) and M. Com in Accounting from The University of 
*�����	��	���	���
��	�
	���	[
������
�	$���������
	��	��

������	&[$�'	��	!�
�
�

	*�������	�
	;:	��
���#	
7:;��	 ��	 �������	 ���	 ������	 ��	 �	 "�
���	 \�����	 �
	 [$�	 �
	 7�	 \������	 ;�6�	 �
�	 ������	 ������
�	 �������
	 �
	
���	����	��
�
�3����
�	������	���	 ���
�

#	��	�����	��	!�
�
�

	*�������	 �
	4�������	������	�

���
	��
�	
&4����'#	 ����

	 ���	 �������	 ����#	 ��	 ������	 ������
�	 ��
��	 �
�	 _�
�
����	 [
��������
��	 ]������#	 ��	 ������	 ��	
!�
�
�

	*�������	&$����
�	$���
�'	�
�	*�����	!�
�
�

	*�������	��	�
��
�	��
�	%���	 [
	�������
	��	����#	
��3�	"�
���	��}	���	�����

	��	X�
����	!�
�
��	�
	��

������	*��������
�	��
�	%���	&�*�%'	�
�	4�������	
������	�

���
	��
�	&4����'�	��	����	������	��	$]\	�
	[$�	"���������	+����

	$����
�	%���	

He has been contributing  his professional expertise as the Chairman of  ICB Capital Management Ltd. Apart 
from that, he is also serving  as the Director of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Co. Ltd. (BATBC), United 
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and Infrastructure Development Finance Company Ltd.(IIDFC), Linde Bangladesh Ltd., GlaxoSmithKline 
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Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL) including some other Organization as Director.

Being a Managing Director of the Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB), he joined as nominee Director 
of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. on 11 September 2017.

He is also the member of Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company. 

A MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SIGNED BY MANAGING DIRECTOR PRESENTING DETAILED 
ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATIONS ALONG WITH A BRIEF DISCUSSION OF 
�PQ)*_��
)�XP_��
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Q?��XQX_�_)X���Q�$)*�$XP_����

A management’s discussion and analysis signed by Managing Director presenting detailed analysis of the 
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been presented in the page No. 41.

DECLARATION OR CERTIFICATION BY THE CEO AND THE CFO TO THE BOARD AS REQUIRED  UNDER 
�$)�
X
$)�)$��������PQ??�;_��
��?$�_��Q��Z_��Q))_�}�_�Q
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Annexure A, Page No. 74.
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THE REPORT AS WELL AS CERTIFICE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF THIS CODE AS 
REQUIRED UNDER CONDITION NO. 9. 
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No. 9 has been presented under Annexure -B and Annexure -C in the page No. 76 and 77 respectively.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
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appointed him as Chairman of the Company in the year 2014. Unfortunately, our beloved Chairman, demised 
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as Chairman of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. by the Board in its 92nd Meeting held on 5 September 2018.  

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
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is placed before the shareholders at the 42nd  Annual General Meeting (AGM) for approval.

APPOINTMENT OF COMPLIANCE AUDITOR AS PER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, compliance 
auditors of the Company audited the compliance status of the Company for the year 2017-2018. M. Z. Islam 
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Compliance Auditors for the Financial Year 2018-2019.
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Directors of the Audit Committee and suggested to re-appoint M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, as 
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(Forty Thousand) only subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the 42nd AGM of the Company to be held 
on 6 December 2018.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

*���

	���	<
�
����	����	7:;��7:;6#	���	$����
�	����	�*+	7#7~��6~	������
	��	���	�����
��	]����}���	�
	���	
form of Corporate Income Tax, Value Added Tax (VAT) and Custom Duties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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responsible for the governance of their Companies. The shareholders’ role in governance is to appoint the 
Directors and the Auditors and to satisfy themselves that an appropriate governance structure is in place.
The responsibilities of the Board include setting the Company’s strategic aims, providing the leadership to put 
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Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) has imposed some further conditions and issued a 
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2018. Compliance status of the above mentioned Code by The ACME Laboratories Ltd. has been depicted in 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors is the highest governance body of the Company and represents the interests of all 
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Governance Codes of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Board’s essential role is 
to approve the Company’s strategy and oversee compliance. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Sl. No. Name Position in Audit Committee Position in Board
01. Ms. Fouzia Haque, FCA Chairman Independent Director
02. Syed Shahed Reza Member Independent Director

03. Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq Member Nominee Director of Investment 
Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB)
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Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide reference no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
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as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level executives. Presently, the 
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Sl. No. Name Position in Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee Position in Board

01. Syed Shahed Reza Chairman Independent Director 

02. Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq Member
Nominee Director of 

Investment Corporation of 
Bangladesh (ICB)

03. Mrs. Jahanara Mizan Sinha Member Director 

DISCLAIMER 
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implement the codes before 31 December 2018. Accordingly, as per the decision of the Board, during the year 
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Central Depository of Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL), National Board of Revenue(NBR), Directorate General of Drug 
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Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) for their continued support and co-operation extended to us 
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On behalf of the Board,

Mrs. Nagina Afzal Sinha 
Chairman
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A MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SIGNED BY CEO OR MD PRESENTING DETAILED 
ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATIONS ALONG WITH A BRIEF DISCUSSION 

OF CHANGES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of Financial Statements 
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accounting Policies and Estimates.
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2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Amount 
in BDT

Growth
���

Amount 
in

BDT

Growth
���

Amount 
in BDT

Growth
���

Amount 
in BDT

Growth
���

Amount 
in BDT

Growth
���

Revenue (in 
million) 14,813.91 9.12% 13,576.32 7.37% 12,644.91 9.99% 11,496.41 12.51% 10,217.93 13.87%

���	F��<�	����	
Tax (in million) 1,426.57 2.05% 1,397.85 26.93% 1,101.27 19.45% 921.92 3.14% 893.89 76.76%

Net Asset Value 
Per
Share

83.39 4.06% 80.13 3.62% 77.34 9.89% 70.37 6.36% 66.16 8.20%

EPS 6.74 2.03% 6.61 0.80% 6.55 14.88% 5.70 0.97% 5.65 34.84%

Operating Cash 
_����
Per Share

7.46 13.03% 6.70 5.56% 6.25 -3.79% 6.50 128.00% 2.85 -39.23%

Overall business performance of the company has been found sustainable over the years. The reported 
revenue of the company stood at BDT 14,813.91 million in Financial Year 2017-2018 against BDT 10,217.93 

41

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8



������
	�
	_�
�
����	����	7:;|�7:;�	�
������

	�	$�����
�	�

���	X�����	4���	&$�X4'	��	���|�	�
	����	<��	
years.

+��	 
��	 ���<�	 
�����#	 ���	 ������	 Z����	 ���	 �����	 &��ZF"'#	 ]��
�

�	 ���	 "����	 &]F"'	 �
�	 �����	 <
�
����	
��������
��	��	���	�����
�	��	���
�	����������	����	���	����	<��	������	!�������#	��	���	���
	��������	����	
���	�����
�	���	
�
������	�������
�	�������

	����	����	����	���	��
	������#	�����	������	��	����	 ���	
�
���
��	��	����	��	�����
��	����
��	

�&�7�(+�&9�&\�	9�9%+���7"(\&(��9%"�&(�("���!���9��	9�9%+���7&�+!+&9�����"������%��=��&����+!=�!="�
peer industry scenario

As most of the top leading Pharmaceutical Companies are Private Limited Company or Proprietorship 
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Financial and Economic Scenario of the Country and the Globe
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neighbors by improving its business competitiveness and trade regime.

Development and democracy are complementary to each other. Active participation, cooperation and 
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Life expectancy has reached to 71.8 years. Child mortality has reduced to 29 in per thousand live births. 
Previously, Bangladesh exported medicine to 85 countries. In 2016, the number increased to 125 including 
UK and USA.
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mitigation plan of the company 

Risk Management
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Operational Risk

ACME  relies on suppliers for ingredients and various third parties for certain manufacturing-related services 
to produce material that meets appropriate content, quality and stability standards of the company products 
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Company’s ability to obtain regulatory approval for its products and substantially increase Company’s costs 
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Management Perception 

ACME has a good number of vendors and for each and every ingredient and service, the Company have more than 
one approved vendors. It uses to conduct vendor audit and its professionals are very conscious and concerned 
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Interest Rate Risk
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investing in debt securities.

Management Perception
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Exchange Rate Risk
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Management Perception

ACME earns some of its revenue in US dollars, thereby creating to built-up auto hedging scope. Besides, in 
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Pharmaceutical sector is technologically the most developed manufacturing industries in Bangladesh and 
the second largest industry in terms of contribution to government’s exchequer. The industry contributes 
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 	"������	�
�	�����
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 	Penicillin Project
 	Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (API)

Among the above three projects, the company is expecting to start commercial operation of steroid & 
Hormone and Penicillin projects in the middle of 2019. Furthermore, extension unit of Solid Dosages is also 
going to launch in the same year.

Mizanur Rahman Sinha
Managing Director
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CEPHALOSPORIN UNIT

45

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8



HUMAN & HERBAL
PRODUCTS
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REARRANGEMENT OF IPO PROCEEDS
Information as per Prospectus:

It may be recalled that, The ACME Laboratories Ltd. issued the prospectus on 16 March 2016 in relation to 
���	[
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Sl. No. Projects Cost Breakdown Q�&�9!��+9�;�X��(&("�

01. Steroid and Hormone

Civil Construction 33.58

Machinery & Equipment 59.86

Utility 33.96

Warehouse 3.95

Vehicle 0.50

Consultancy 2.63

Contingencies 1.32

Sub-total     135.80

02. Oncology

Civil Construction 33.58

Machinery & Equipment 36.70

Utility 35.00

Warehouse 5.00

Vehicle 0.50

Consultancy 2.21

Contingencies 1.11

Sub-total     114.10

03. Ayurvedic, Modern Herbal 
and  Nutraceuticals

Civil Construction 41.75

Machinery & Equipment 85.72

Utility 40.40

Warehouse 1.10

Vehicle 0.50

Consultancy 3.39

Contingencies 1.69

Sub-total 174.55

          Total Cost of the Projects 424.45

04     IPO Expenses 6.83

          Grand Total 431.28
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Information as per Resolution of 40th Annual General Meeting:

In order to meet the requirements of local and global regulators and considering the greater interest of the 
Shareholders, the Board of Directors in its 64th Meeting held on 20 September 2016 recommended the proposal 
of partial change in use of IPO Proceeds. Accordingly, the shareholders in its 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
����	 �
	 �	 ��������	 7:;~	 ��������	 ���	 ��������	 ��	 �������	 ���

�	 �
	 ���	 ��	 [F\	 F�������	 �����	 ���	 �����	
intimated to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission and other regulators. As per partial change of IPO 
��������	���
#	���	��������	�����3����
	��	[F\	��������	���	��	�
���/
 

Name of The Projects & Others Estimated cost of the Projects as per resolution of 
40th�Q*���;�X�+9��+��+&9�

Steroid and Hormone 1,358.00

Penicillin  400.00 

Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (API) 1,355.23

4������
�	��	��
�	�������

 1,360.00 
IPO Expenses     68.29 

Proposed Re-arrangement of IPO Proceeds:
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of sophisticated technology, sourcing of suppliers for modern integrated machinery, the respective suppliers 
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the mentioned time limit. As per terms and conditions of the Letter of Consent of Bangladesh Securities and 
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Company’s organic source of funds. 

Considering the greater interest of the Shareholders, the Board of Directors of the Company in its 93rd Meeting 
held on 2 October 2018 recommended to re-arrange the use of IPO proceeds and decided to complete the 
��������	
�����	&�'	"������	�	�����
�	�
�	&�'	F�
������
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shareholders’ in its 42nd Annual General Meeting and necessary intimation to the Commission and the Exchanges.
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Proposed Utilization Plan of IPO Proceeds
Amount in BDT

S.L
Name of the 

Projects & 
Others

Cost Breakdown Previous 
Timeline

Proposed 
Timeline

Amount as per 
Last 40th AGM/

Prospectus

Amount as per 
Proposed utilization 

Plan

1
Steroid and 

Hormone 
Project

Civil Construction

Within 2 Years 
of Receiving 
IPO Fund, ie. 

2018

Within June 
2019

335,800,000 334,934,878

Machinery & Equipment 598,600,000 933,900,000

Utility 339,600,000 353,700,000

Warehouse 39,500,000 21,986,000

Vehicle 5,000,000 5,000,000

Consultancy fee 26,300,000 1,200,000

Contingencies 13,200,000 9,870,308

Sub Total ����^�������� ��kk�������^k

2 Penicillin Project

Civil Construction

Within the 
Month of 

March 2018

Within June 
2019

116,000,000 142,922,303

Machinery & Equipment 132,299,520 79,768,602

Utility 117,154,000 146,345,797

Warehouse 20,582,700 21,641,545

Vehicle 3,000,000 2,901,503

Consultancy fee 5,963,780 1,420,250

Contingencies 5,000,000 5,000,000

Sub Total ����������� �����������

3
Active 

Pharmaceuticals 
Ingredients (API) 

Civil Construction

Within 2-3 
�����	����	

����	
����

	
permission 

from the 
Ministry of 
Industries

Within
June
 2022

347,860,000 355,637,304

Machinery & Equipment 493,000,000 250,495,241

Utility 409,400,000 -

Warehouse 38,500,000 -

Vehicle 3,000,000 -

Consultancy fee 23,635,200 -

Contingencies 12,917,600 -

[
�����	{����

	$������ 26,915,492 -

Sub Total ��������^���� k�k��������

4 Repayment of 
��
�	�������

 N/A N/A 1,360,000,000 1,360,000,000

5 IPO Expenses N/A N/A 68,291,870 68,291,870

Total �����������k� ����������k��

Project wise proposed re-arrangement details are given below:

a. Steroid and Hormone Project:
��	 [
�������	���	$���	��	���	F������	���	�*+	;#|�6�::	!�����
	�����	���	���
	�
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Reason behind the increase of cost is adaptation of sophisticated technology, selection of manufacturer 
�
�	��������
����	�������	��	�����	
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	���	������
iii. Fund has been used since middle of June 2018 from the organic source of the Company to retire Letter of  
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b. Penicillin Project:
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be reimbursed from IPO funds.
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i. Estimated project cost of Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (API) project is BDT 1,360.00 Million, out of 
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	���	�������	
completion time by June 2022.

d. Interest Income from FDR of use of IPO proceeds to be used as Working Capital of the projects subject to 
the approval of the Shareholders in its 42nd Annual General Meeting.
  
In this regard, the Board of Directors in its 93rd Meeting held on 2 October 2018 recommended to re-arrange the 
above mentioned IPO Proceeds subject to the approval of the Shareholder in the 42nd Annual General Meeting.  
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BLOW FILL SEAL (BFS)- LVP & SVP

 AND 

LIQUID & SEMI-SOLID UNITS
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TRIPLE BOTTOM LINE (TBL) REPORTING
[
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sustainability relies on economic value, environmental health, and social progress. Our values are rooted in 
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being of the people and environments are also equally important. Moreover, it is our constitutional obligation 
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Bangladesh. Hence, ACME has adopted Triple Bottom Line concept as its business philosophy.  
The TBL dimensions synergistically include three Ps;
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been found by HSE monitoring team.
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Service Providers, the Company produced a comprehensive training manual titled, “cÖwkÿY wb‡`wkKv wbe©vwPZ 
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namely, “Jlwa Dw™¢` Pvwl‡`i Rb¨ e¨envwiK wk¶v” targeting the illiterate and semi-illiterate farmers. The manual 
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Company contributed for establishing Primary Collection & Multipurpose Centers and Sub Centers in the 
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provides additional income and also helping them to become self-reliant.
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  Directors’ of the Company, to support deceased employee’s family.
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PLANET
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facility.
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facing extinction crisis throughout the country for improving health of Human, animal, environment and 
biodiversity.
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year 2017-2018; 35% cash dividend for the years 2016-2017 and 2015-2016 recpectively;
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A world class facility to manufacture 

lifesaving Intravenous Fluids
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41st AGM
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Our performance
Business Journey
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Public Limited Company on 30 November 2011. 
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one of the largest manufacturer, distributor and exporter of Human, Herbal and Animal Health Pharmaceutical 
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Excellence”. The ACME Laboratories Ltd. is committed to maintain state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities 
for ensuring best quality products to the customers. ACME is committed to achieve excellence by proper 
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year 2003 and Metered Dosage Inhaler (MDI) added its product line in the year 2004. The ACME Laboratories 
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The ACME Specialized Pharmaceuticals Limited (ASPL), a subsidiary of The ACME Laboratories Ltd., in order 
to cater upcoming national and global demand of various types of products and also to meet the challenges 
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20.11.2013 approved the scheme of amalgamation of the “The ACME Specialized Pharmaceuticals Limited 
(ASPL)” (the transferor C����
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relating there to be transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company. In this regard, the Board of Directors 
of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company in its respective meetings held on 27.12.2013 
��������	����	���	�����	��	�����
��	��	���	+��
������	$����
�	��	��	������	�����
�	���
������

	���	����
���	
��	���	�����	��	���	+��
������	$����
�	��^��	��	|;�:;�	7:;��	+��	����
������
	����	���	���	���	������

	
[
���
����
��	������������
	��
�<�	���	���	��������	���

	��������	�
	���	�"F%	�
��	����	[
���
����
��	X!F	
compliance as earlier enjoyed by the Company.
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project more environments friendly. On 4 November 2013, the Company has successfully completed and 
launched separate Cephalosporin facility. The facility of Blue Fill Seal (BFS) -LVP & SVP products already has 
been commissioned and commercially launched its productions in October 2014.

[
	���	����	7:;~#	���	$����
�	������	����	*����	"����	]����

�	%���	&*"]'	�
�	$�����
�

	"����	]����

�	
%���	&$"]'�	�������#	���	$����
�	�������	���	��
��������
	�����	��	"������	�	�����
�	�
�	F�
������
	��������	
during the year.
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Human Resources and Supply chain etc. of Human and Veterinary Pharmaceutical products” of the Company. 
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In the next year, the Company is going to launch the products of its Steroid & Hormone project, Penicillin 
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Performance 2017-2018
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In summary, during the Financial Year 2017-2018, the Company has met the target revenue and earning goals 
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2017-2018
Performance at a glance
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VETERINARY PRODUCTS
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INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND GLOBAL PHARMA TREND 
Pharmaceutical sector is technologically the most developed manufacturing industries in Bangladesh and 
the second largest industry in terms of contribution to government’s exchequer. The industry contributes 
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Pharmaceuticals may reach about BDT 330,000 million by 2020.
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Our role in Bangladesh 
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ACME’s Marketing & Distribution Strengths
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channel thereby reaching at the doorstep our customers.
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Expanding the Horizon
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Strategy and Outlook
Business development initiatives
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activities for our businesses. 

Guidance for 2018-2019
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd., as a responsible enterprise is committed to the conservation of nature and the 
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REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF 
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017-2018

Audit Committee of the Board
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Governance, the Board of Directors of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. formed the Audit Committee (AC) to provide 
independent oversight of the Company’s Financial Reporting, Internal Control Systems and compliance to 
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Committee), Syed Shahed Reza (Independent Director & Member of Audit Committee) and Mr. Kazi Sanaul 
Hoq (Nominee Director of ICB & Member of Audit Committee). All members of the present Committee are 
non-executive Directors and the Chairman of Audit Committee is an Independent Director. As required, all 
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Purpose of Audit Committee
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Responsibilities and Duties
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Financial Reporting
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requirements; and
- The going concern assumption.

Related Party Transactions
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procedure or code of conduct that may raise questions of management integrity.
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Audit Reports
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composition of the Audit Committee, its terms of reference, number of meetings held, a summary of 
its activities and the existence of internal audit services and summary of the activities for inclusion in 
the Annual Report; and
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inclusion in the Annual Report.

Internal Control
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losses and maximize opportunities;
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administered and regularly monitored;
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including, for example, the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct;
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of the internal and external auditors and from the consultations of the Audit Committee itself.

Internal Audit
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mandates and approved audit plans.
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- To ensure that Internal Audit has full, free and  unrestricted access to all activities, records, 
property and personnel necessary to perform its duties; and
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External Audit
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dismissal of the external auditor;
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Other Matters

To act on any other matters as may be directed by the Board.

REPORTING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Board immediately.

Reporting to the Authorities
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Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board of Directors 
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the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the Annual Report of the Issuer Company.

69

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8



Authority
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the Committee. The Committee is also authorized to have information and advice from the Company’s Legal 
Advisor, Tax Consultant and Statutory Auditor if required. The terms of reference of Audit Committee may be 
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Meeting Attendance
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Name of Directors  Position  No. of Meetings held  No. of Meetings attended 

Ms. Fouzia Haque, FCA Chairman 06 06
Mr. Kazi Sanaul Hoq Member 06 05
Syed Shahed Reza Member 06 04

Summary of Activities during the Year
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Financial Reporting
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standards and other legal requirements before recommending them to the Board of Directors for approval 
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performance.

Internal Control
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policies and practices, adjustments arising from the audits.
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Internal Audit
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and adequacy of coverage.
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£	 4�������	���	�������	��������
��	��	���	�����
��	�������	���	���	����	7:;��7:;6�

Related Party Transactions
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generally not more favorable than those generally available to the public and other suppliers and are 
not detrimental to the minority shareholders.
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of the Company.
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Ethical and Integrity Areas
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Annual Reporting
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year ended 30 June 2018 for inclusion in the Annual Report for the year 2017-2018 and recommended 
their adoption by the Board.

Focus Internal Audit
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the plan on a quarterly basis. Any subsequent changes to the internal audit plan are approved by the audit 
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- Field Force Management; 
- Health & Safety;
- Requisition to Pay;
- Record to Report.
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October 2018.
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�"� FCA
Chairman of Audit Committee 
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
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[As per condition No.1 (5) (xxvii)
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/
CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80; dated: 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange 
Ordinance, 1969:  	

(Report under Condition NO.9)

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

1.1.
The total number of members of a company’s Board of 
Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board”) shall not be less 
than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

√

1.2.

Independent Directors:
All companies shall have effective representation of independent directors on their Boards, so 
that the Board, as a group, includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of 
each company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:

1.2(a) At least 1/5th of the  total number of Directors in the Company’s 
Board shall be as Independent Directors; √

1.2(b)(i)
Independent Director does not hold any share or holds less 
than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up Shares of 
the Company;

√

1.2(b)(ii)

Independent Director is not a Sponsor of the Company or is 
not connected with the Company’s any Sponsor or Director or 
Nominated Director or Shareholder of the Company or any of its 
associates, sister concern, subsidiaries and parents or holding 
entities who holds 1% or more shares to the total paid-up share 
of the Company on the basis of family relationship and his/her 
family members all shall not hold above mentioned shares in 
the company

√

1.2(b)(iii) Independent Director should not be an executive of the 
Company in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years; √

1.2(b)(iv)
Independent Directors does not have any other relationship, 
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the Company or its 
Subsidiary or Associated Companies; 

√

1.2(b)(v)
Independent Director is not a member or TREC (Trading Right 
Entitlement Certificate) holder, Director or Officer of any 
Stock Exchange;

√

1.2(b)(vi)
Independent Director is not a shareholder, Director excepting 
independent director or officer of any member or TREC holder 
of Stock Exchange or an intermediary of the Capital Market;

√

Annexure -C
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1.2(b)(vii)

Independent Director is not a partner or an executive or was 
not a partner or an executive during the preceding 3 (three) 
years of the concerned Company’s Statutory Audit Firm 
or Audit Firm engaged in Internal Audit Services or Audit 
Firm conducting Special Audit or Professional certifying 
compliance of this Code;

√

1(2)(b(viii) Independent Director is not Independent Director in more 
than 5 (five) Listed Companies; √

1(2)(b(ix)

Independent Director has not been convicted by a court of 
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in  payment of any loan 
or any advance to a Bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution 
(NBFI);

√

1(2)(b)(x) Independent Director has not been convicted for a criminal 
offence involving moral turpitude; √

1(2)(c) The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board 
and approved by the shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM);

√

1(2)(d) The post of Independent Director(s) cannot remain vacant for more 
than 90 (ninety) days;

√

1(2)(e)
The tenure of office of an Independent Director shall be for a 
period of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) 
tenure only: 

√

1(3) Qualification of Independent Director:-

1(3)(a)

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual 
with integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial 
laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can 
make meaningful contribution to the business;

√

1(3)(b) Independent  Director shall have following qualifications: 

1(3)(b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a Promoter or Director of an 
unlisted Company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 
100.00 million or any listed Company or a member of any 
National or International Chamber of Commerce or Business 
Association; 

√

1(3)(b)(ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower 
than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy 
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance 
or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit 
and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with 
equivalent position of an unlisted Company having minimum 
paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a Listed Company;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1(3)(b(iii)

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or 
regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the 
national pay scale, who has at least educational  background  
of  bachelor  degree  in  economics  or  commerce  or business 
or law;

√

1(3)(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in 
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law;

1(3)(b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least 
in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court 
or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management 
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered 
Certified Accountant or Certified Public accountant or 
Chartered Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary 
or equivalent qualification;

√

1(3)(c) The Independent Director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of 
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b);

√

1(3)(d) In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may 
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission. √ N/A

1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer:-

1(4)(a)
The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Managing Director (MD) and / or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
of  the company shall be  filled by different individuals.

√

1(4)(b)
The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) of a listed Company shall not hold the same position in 
another listed Company;

√

1(4)(c) The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among 
the non-executive directors of the Company; √

1(4)(d)
The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities 
of the Chairperson and the Managing Director and or Chief 
Executive Officer;

√

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves from non-executive 
Directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting; 
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be 
duly recorded in the minutes.

√

1(5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1(5)(i) An Industry outlook and possible future developments in the 
industry;

√

1(5)(ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance; √

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, 
threat to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

√

1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross profit Margin and 
Net Profit Margin, where applicable; 

√

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and 
their implications (gain or loss);

√

1(5)(vi)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along 
with a statement showing amount, nature of related party, 
nature of transactions and basis of transactions of all related 
party transactions; 

√

1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public 
issues, rights issues and/or any other instruments;

√

1(5)(viii)
An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the 
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public 
Offering(RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

√

1(5)(ix)
An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between 
Quarterly Financial performances and Annual Financial 
Statements; 

√

1(5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including 
Independent Directors;

√

1(5)(xi)

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Issuer Company present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity; 

√

1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the Issuer 
Company have been maintained; 

√

1(5)(xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have 
been consistently applied in preparation of the financial 
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment;

√

1(5)(xiv)

A Statement that International Accounting Statement 
(IAS) /International Financial Reporting standard (IFRS), as 
applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation 
of the financial statements and any departure there-from 
has been adequately disclosed;

√

1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied



81

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8

1(5)(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected 
from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling 
shareholders acting either directly or  indirectly and have 
effective means of redress;

√

1(5)(xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubts upon the issuer 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer 
company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along 
with reasons thereof shall be disclosed;

√

1(5)(xviii)
An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s 
operating results of the Issuer Company shall be highlighted 
and the reasons there of shall be explained;

√

1(5)(xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at 
least preceding 5 (Five) years shall be summarized;

√

1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not 
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year;

1(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock 
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

√

1(5)(xxii) The total number of Board Meetings held during the year and 
attendance by each Director shall be disclosed;

√

1(5)(xxiii)
A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the 
aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise details 
where stated below) held by:-

√

1(5)(xxiii(a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other 
related parties (name-wise details);

√

1(5)(xxiii)(b)
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and 
their spouses and minor children (name-wise details);

√

1(5)(xxiii(c) Executives; √

1(5)(xxiii(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting 
interest in the Company (name-wise details);

√

1(5)(xxiv) In case of the appointment or re-appointment of a Director, a 
disclosure on the following information to the Shareholders:-

√

1(5)(xxiv(a) A brief resume of the Director; √
1(5)(xxiv)(b) Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas; √

1(5)(xxiv)(c) Names of Companies in which the person also holds the 
Directorship and the Memberships of Committees of the Board;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1(5)(xxv)

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or 
MD presenting detailed analysis of the Company’s position 
and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in 
the Financial Statements, among others, focusing on:

√

1(5)(xxv(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of 
Financial Statements;

√

1(5)(xxv(b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly 
describing the effect on financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for 
such changes;

√

1(5)(xxv(c)

Comparative analysis (including effect of inflation) of 
financial performance or results and financial position as 
well as cash flows for current financial year with immediate 
preceding five years explaining reasons thereof; 

√

1.(5)(xxv(d)
Compare such financial performance or results and financial 
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry 
scenario;

√

1(5)(xxv)(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the 
country and the globe;

√

1(5)(xxv)(f)
Risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements, explaining such risks and concerns mitigation 
plan of the Company;

√

1(5)(xxv)(g)

Future plan or projection or forecast for Company’s 
operation, Performance and financial position, with 
justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained 
to the shareholders in the next AGM;

√

1(5)(xxvi)
Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the 
Board as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed 
as per Annexure-A;

√

1(5)(xxvii)
The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of 
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 
shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

√

1(6) Meetings of the Board of Directors
The Company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the 
minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books and 
records in line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh 
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those 
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this 
Code. 

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

1(7)(a)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration  
Committee (NRC)  at  condition  No. 6, for the Chairperson of 
the Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company; 

√

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be 
posted on the website of the Company including, among 
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality, 
conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and 
regulations; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with 
environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and 
independency.

√

2. GOVERNANCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:-

2(a)
Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of 
the holding Company shall be made applicable to the 
composition of the Board of the subsidiary Company; 

N/A

2(b)
At least 1 (one) Independent Director on the Board of the 
holding Company shall be a Director on the Board of the 
Subsidiary Company; 

N/A

2(c)
The minutes of the Board Meeting of the Subsidiary 
Company shall be placed for review at the following Board 
meeting of the Holding Company;

N/A

2(d)
The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding 
Company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of 
the Subsidiary Company also;

N/A

2(e)
The Audit Committee of the Holding Company shall also review 
the Financial Statements in particular the investments made by 
the Subsidiary Company.

N/A

3. MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO), CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), 
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE (HIAC) AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS):-

3(1) Appointment

3(1)(a)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO), and Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC);

√

3(1)(b)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be 
filled by different individuals; 

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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3(1)(c)
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO, and HIAC of a listed company shall not 
hold any executive position in any other Company at the same 
time;

√

3(1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities 
and duties of  the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

√

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO, and HIAC shall not be removed 
from their position without approval of the Board as well 
as immediate dissemination to the Commission and Stock 
Exchange(s).

√

3(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the Company shall attend the 
meetings of the Board.

√

3(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO)

3(3)(a)
The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have 
reviewed Financial Statements for the year and that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief:

√

3(3)(a)(i)
These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement 
or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

√

3(3)(a)(ii)
These statements together present a true and fair view of the 
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards and applicable laws; 

√

3(3)(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to 
the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered 
into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the 
Company’s Board or its members;

√

3(3)( c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed 
in the Annual Report

√

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEE:-
4(i) Audit Committee

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

5. AUDIT COMMITTEE:-
5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

5(1)(a) The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee 
of the Board;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
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5(1)(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the 
financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within 
the business;

√

5(1)(c)
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the 
duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in 
writing. 

√

5(2) Constitution of the Audit committee:

5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) 
members;

√

5(2)(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee 
who shall be non-executive directors of the Company 
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at least 
1 (one) Independent Director; 

√

5(2)(c)

All members of the Audit Committee should be “financially 
literate” and at least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or 
related financial management background and 10 (ten) years 
of such experience; 

√

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires 
or there is any circumstance causing any Committee member 
to be unable to hold office before expiration of the term of 
service, thus making the number of the Committee members 
to be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, 
the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up 
the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from 
the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of 
the performance of work of the Audit Committee; 

√

5(2)(e) The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit 
Committee;

√

5(2)(f) The quorum of Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute 
without at least 1 (One) Independent Director.

√

5(3) Chairperson of the Audit Committee: √

5(3)(a)
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee 
to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an 
Independent Director;

√

5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
the remaining members may elect one of themselves as 
Chairperson for that particular meeting, in that case there 
shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required 
under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the 
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes. 

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in 
the Annual General Meeting (AGM):

√

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee:

5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings 
in a financial year; 

√

5(4)(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be 
constituted in presence of either two members or two third 
of the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, 
where presence of an Independent Director is a must.

√

5(5) Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall:-

5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process; √
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; √

5(5)(c)

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that 
it is adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal 
Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit 
and Compliance Report;

√

5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; √

5(5)(e)
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for 
review of the Annual Financial Statements before submission 
to the Board for approval or adoption;

√

5(5)(f) Review  along  with  the  management,  the  Annual  Financial  
Statements  before submission to the Board for approval;

√

5(5)(g)
Review along with the management, the quarterly and half  
yearly Financial Statements before submission to the Board 
for approval;

√

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; √

5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before 
disclosing in the Annual Report; 

√

5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted 
by the management; 

√

5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control 
weakness issued by statutory auditors; 

√

5(5)(l)

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and 
magnitude, level of expertise  deployed  and  time  required  
for  effective  audit  and  evaluate  the performance of external 
auditors;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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5(5)(m)

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public 
Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share 
Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant 
offer document or prospectus approved  by the Commission: 

√

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors:

5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on tis activates to the 
Board. 

√

5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board 
on the following findings, if any:- 

√

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests; √

5(6)(a)(ii)(b)
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material 
defect identified in the internal audit and compliance process 
or in the Financial Statements;

√

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliance 
including securities related laws, rules and regulation; 

√

5(6)(a)(ii)(d) Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems 
necessary shall be disclosed to the Board immediately;

√

5(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities:

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about 
anything which has material impact on the financial condition 
and results of operation and has discussed with the Board 
and the management that any rectification is necessary and 
if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been 
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such 
finding to the commission, upon reporting of such matters 
to the Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 
(six) months from the date of first reporting to the Board, 
whichever is earlier.

√

5(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: √

5(7)

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, 
including any report made to the Board under condition 
No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the 
Annual Report of the issuer Company.

√

6. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC).

6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors:

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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6(1)(a) The Company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;

√

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the 
nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, experiences and independence  of 
directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal 
process of considering remuneration of directors, top level 
executive;

√

6(1)(c)
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set 
forth in writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 
6(5)(b).

√

6(2) Constitution of the NRC

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members 
including an Independent Director;

√

6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive 
directors; 

√

6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed 
by the Board;

√

6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any 
member of the committee; 

√

6(2)(e)

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal 
of any member of the Committee or in any another cases 
of vacancies the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 
(one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the 
Committee;

√

6(2)(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any 
external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as 
advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson 
feels that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/
or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the 
Committee;

√

6(2)(g) The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the 
Committee.

√

6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without 
attendance of at least an independent director; 

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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6(2)(i)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or 
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy 
role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or honorarium 
form the Company. 

√

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC:

6(3)(a)
The Board shall select 1 (One) member of the NRC to be 
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an Independent 
Director; 

√

6(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for 
that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

√

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

√

6(4) Meeting of the NRC:

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial 
year; 

√

6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC, may convene any emergency 
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC;

√

6(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in 
presence of either two members or two third of the members 
of the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
Independent Director is must as required under condition No. 
6(2)(h);

√

6(4)(d)
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be 
recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed 
in the next meeting of the NRC.

√

6(5) Role of NRC:

6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to 
the Board and to the shareholders;

√

6(5)(b) NRC shall  oversee,  among others,  the  following  matters  
and make  report  with recommendation to the Board:

√

6(5)(b)(i)

Formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive 
attributes and independence of a Directors and recommend 
a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the 
Directors, top level executives considering the following:  

√

6(5)(b)(i)(a)
The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and 
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable Directors to 
run the Company successfully;

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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6(5)(b)(i)(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks; 

√

6(5)(b)(i)(c)

The remuneration to Directors, top level executive involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and 
long term performance objectives appropriate to working of 
the Company and its goals;

√

6(5)(b)(ii)
Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration 
age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background 
and nationality;

√

6(5)(b)(iii)

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors 
and who may be appointed in top level executive position in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board;

√

6(5)(b)(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of 
Independent Directors and the Board;

√

6(5)(b)(v)
Identifying Company’s needs for employees at different 
levels and determine their selection, transfer or replacement 
and promotion criteria; 

√

6(5)(b)(vi) Developing,  recommending and reviewing annually the 
Company’s human resources and training policies; 

√

6(5)(c)
The Company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration 
policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during 
the year at a glance in its Annual Report; 

√

7. EXTERNAL OR STATUTORY AUDITORS:

7(1)
The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory 
auditors to perform the following services of the company, 
namely:-

7(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions; √

7(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation; √

7(1)(iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting 
records or Financial Statements;

√

7(1)(iv) Broker-dealer services; √
7(1)(v) Actuarial services; √
7(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services; √
7(1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines; √

7(1)(viii) Audit or certification services on compliance of Corporate 
Governance as required under condition No. 9(1); 

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied
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7(1)(ix) Any other service that may create conflict of interest √

7(2)

No partner or employees of the External or Statutory Auditors 
audit firms shall possess any share of the Company they 
audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of 
that Company; his or her family members also shall not hold 
any share in the said Company; 

√

7(3)

Representative of External or Statutory Auditors shall remain 
present in the Shareholders Meeting (Annual General Meeting 
or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries of 
the shareholders.

√

8 MAINTAINING A WEBSITE BY THE COMPANY:

8(1) The Company shall have an official website linked with the 
website of the Stock Exchange.

√

8(2) The Company shall keep the website functional from the date 
of listing; 

√

8(3)
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures 
on its website as required under the listing regulations of the 
concerned Stock Exchanges(s);

√

9. REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

9(1)

The Company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing 
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant 
or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) 
other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis 
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be 
disclosed in the Annual Report.;

√

9(2)
The professional who will provide the certificate on 
compliance of Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed 
by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting;

√

9(3)
The directors of the Company shall state, in accordance with 
the Annexure-C attached, in the Directors’ Report whether 
the Company has complied with these conditions or not.

√

Condition 
No. Title

Compliance Status 
(Put  “√” in the 

appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not 
Complied



Social, Environmental and Economic Development (SEED) Project 
of ACME and its Current Training Activities

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the ACME Laboratories Ltd. has been 
implementing medicinal plant cultivation activities in different parts of the country since 2006. 
In the beginning, medicinal plant cultivation activities were mainly concentrated in Bogura and 
Gaibandha district of the North Bengal involving only a few farmers. However, due to active 
involvement of ACME and better coordination with the medicinal plant growers, the initiative 
expanded rapidly in other districts of Rajshahi and Rangpur division. In 2016, the Company 
started a dedicated project namely “Social, Environmental and Economic Development 
(SEED)” project for continuing medicinal plant cultivation activities in the existing areas as well 
as expanding the initiative in other parts of the country such as, Khulna, Madhupur, Jamalpur 
and Chittagong Hill Tracts. Currently, more than 50,000 trained medicinal plant growers 
are engaged with medicinal plant cultivation and supplying quality herbal raw materials to 
ACME on regular basis. The company started procuring herbal raw materials from the trained 
medicinal plant growers of Chittagong Hill Tracts as well. The main objectives of these CSR 
activities are to procure quality herbal raw materials produced as per guideline of World Health 
Organization (WHO), contribute to self employment generation, women empowerment, and 
meeting the challenges of mass extinction crisis of medicinal plants in Bangladesh.

Key activities of SEED Project are:

��Training of Trainers (ToT) Program on Medicinal Plant Cultivation Technique, 
Adult Education, Primary Health Care and Sanitation for Medicinal Plant 
Local Service Providers 

Skilled human resources development is prerequisite for ensuring the quality of herbal raw 
materials. Hence, the Company emphasized on developing skilled human resources on 
medicinal plant cultivation, collection and post harvest practices and other practical aspects 
useful for the medicinal plant growers.  The SEED project developed two comprehensive 
training manuals in line with “WHO guidelines on Good Agricultural and Collection 
Practices (GACP) for medicinal plants” namely – i) cÖwkÿY wb‡`©wkKv - wbe©vwPZ Jlwa Dw™¢‡`i 
cwiwPwZ I Pvlvev`  ii) Jlwa  Dw™¢` Pvwl‡`i Rb¨ e¨envwiK wk¶v.
The project has been organizing series of Training of Trainers (ToT) programs for medicinal 
plant Local Service Providers (LSPs) on medicinal plant cultivation technique, adult education, 
primary health care and sanitation in different parts of the country using the training manuals.
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Some pictures of Training of Trainers (ToT) programs are given below:

Mr. AKM Mamunur Rashid, Deputy Commissioner, Rangamati attended as Chief Guest in the 
Inauguration Session of Training of Traininers (ToT) program in Rangamati

 Inaugural Ceremony of Herbal Material Procurement from Chittagong Hill Tracts
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Technical Session of ToT Program in Rangamati

Mr. Ziaur Rahman, Additional Deputy Commissioner, Khulna attended as Chief Guest in the 
Inauguration Session of Training of Trainers (ToT) Program in Khulna 
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Technical Session of Training of Trainers (ToT) Program in Khulna

Technical Session of ToT Program in Gaibandha
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��Lawn Meeting (Uthan Boithak) on Medicinal Plant Cultivation Technique, Adult 
Education, Primary Health Care and Sanitation for Medicinal Plant Growers

The project has organized 65 Lawn meetings (Uthan Boithaks) for medicinal plant growers 
on medicinal plant cultivation technique, adult education, primary health care and sanitation 
in different areas. Trained medicinal plant Local Service Providers (LSP) and other resource 
persons have been imparting training on medicinal plant cultivation technique and practical 
aspects such as, Bengali alphabet learning, basic mathematics, primary health care, sanitation 
etc. to the medicinal plant growers in Uthan Boithak.

Some pictures of Uthan Boithaks and Medicinal plant cultivation are given below:

Uthan Boithak in Kettarpara, 
Palashbari, Gaibandha

Uthan Boithak in Bulakipur, 
Ghoraghat, Dinajpur
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Uthan Boithak in Sreepur, 
Sundargonj, Gaibandha

Uthan Boithak in Pirgonj, 
Rangpur

Uthan Boithak in Namuja, 
Bogura Sadar, Bogura
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Uthan Boithak in Uttor Joypur 
Bogapara, Dogachi, Joypurhat 

Sadar, Joypurhat

Uthan Boithak in 
Hatpangashi, Roygonj, 

Sirajgonj

Uthan Boithak in Baliaghata, 
Panchbibi, Joypurhat
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Medicinal Plant Cultivation 
in Rangamati

Medicinal Plant Cultivation
in Pirgacha, Rangpur

Medicinal Plant Cultivation in 
Roygonj, Sirajgonj
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

OF
THE ACME LABORATORIES LTD.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The ACME Laboratories Ltd. which comprises 
the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018 and the related Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA) applicable in Bangladesh ensuring 
the provisions of the (†Kv¤úvbx  AvBb,  1994 18bs  AvBb) (Companies Act, 1994), the Financial Reporting Act, 
2015, Securities laws and other relevant laws. Those standards require that we comply with the provisions 
or professionalisms or practices or ethical requirements of the International Standards on Auditing (ISA), 
system of quality control requirement under the International Standard on Quality Control (ISQC), the code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants and other relevant standards and pronouncements as applicable 
in Bangladesh. We also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other 
applicable laws and regulations give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 
2018 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and 
regulations.
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Dhaka
Dated: 2nd October 2018

We also report that:

(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief  
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it  
appeared from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit
have been received;

(iii) The Company’s Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive 
Income and its statements of Cash Flows dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of  
account and returns;

(iv) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the company’s business;
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2018

ChairmanManaging DirectorCompany SecretaryHead of  Finance & Accounts
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

For the year ended 30 June 2018

ChairmanManaging DirectorCompany SecretaryHead of  Finance & Accounts
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2018

ChairmanManaging DirectorCompany SecretaryHead of  Finance & Accounts
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
 Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018

ChairmanManaging DirectorCompany SecretaryHead of  Finance & Accounts
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                
As at & for the year ended 30 June 2018

Corporate Information

The ACME Laboratories Limited was founded in the year 1954 as a Proprietorship Firm and it was 
converted into a Private Limited Company on 17th March,1976 vide registration no.         C-4745/163 of 
1975-76 under the Companies Act-1913. Thereafter, it was converted into a public limited company on 
30th November, 2011.

In the Year 2016, the Company achieved a major milestone of public offering of 50,000,000 Ordinary 
Shares of Tk. 10 each which are listed at Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd& Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd 
with effect from 31 May 2016andtraded with effect from 07 June 2016 at both the stock exchanges 
under the trade name ACMELAB and trading codes -18491 and 13031 respectively.

Address of Registered Office and Factories

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 1/4, Kallayanpur, Mirpur Road, Dhaka-1207, 
Bangladesh and the industrial units are established at Dhulivita, Dhamrai, Dhaka, Bangladesh. 

Nature of business of the Company and Tax Holiday Period

The Company is engaged in manufacturing, marketing and distribution of generic pharmaceuticals 
formulation products which includes human drugs dosages form like tablet, capsule, dry syrup, cream, 
ointment, powder, injection, dry powder inhaler, metered dosage inhaler, suppository, eye and nasal 
drop, liquid, liquid in hard gelatine, Blow Fill Seal (BFS) products, sachet products; veterinary drugs 
dosages form like bolus, liquid, injection, water soluble powder, premix and herbal drugs dosages form 
like liquid, capsule, tablet, cream & ointment. The products of the company are sold in domestic and 
in international markets.

The erstwhile ‘The ACME Specialized Pharmaceuticals Limited’ (Presently called “Solid Dosages 
Unit”)  was engaged in manufacturing of non-penicillin& non-cephalosporin solid dosages generic 
pharmaceuticals formulation products including dosages form like tablet, capsule and  dry syrup, liquid 
in hard gelatine, sachet products and is enjoying Tax Holiday for the period from 29 September2011 to 
28 September 2016.

As a Consequence of the amalgamation, business of the “Solid Dosages Unit “has been transferred as 
a going concern to The ACME Laboratories Limited, however the said unit of the company had enjoyed 
tax holiday up to 28 September 2016.

1.00  

1.01  

2.00  
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The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                
As at & for the year ended 30 June 2018

Share Capital 

Details of Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital as at the balance sheet 30th June, 
2018 are as under:

Particulars 30 June 2018
(Tk.)

30 June 2017 
(Tk.)Authorized Capital

500,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Tk. 10 each 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

Total 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital:

211,601,700 Ordinary Shares @ Tk.10 each. 2,116,017,000 2,116,017,000

Total 2,116,017,000 2,116,017,000

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except;
“Land and Land Development; Buildings; Machinery &Equipment; Motor Vehicle; Utilities, Electrical 
Installations & Engineering; Office Equipment and Investment Property,” which had been revalued by 
an independent valuer M/S Mashi Muhit Haque & Co. Chartered Accountants, Dhaka, Bangladesh during 
the financial year 2015-2016. The entire class of above mentioned Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Investment Property had been revalued on the basis of Current Cost Accounting (CCA) Method, as 
applicable.However, Investment Property has been valued on yearly basis. The valuation report of the 
valuer had been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS), International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), notification dated 18thAugust, 2013 issued by the Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission in this regard and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. The Financial Statements however, do not take into consideration the effects of inflation. 
The accounting policies, unless otherwise stated, have been consistently applied by the Company and 
are consistent with those of the previous year.

The revaluation surplus is not available for distribution as dividend to the shareholders.

Accrual Basis of Accounting

The Financial Statements of the Company are prepared as per accrual basis of accounting except for 
cash flows information. Accordingly, The Company recognises items of assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definition and recognition 
criteria as per the accounting framework.

3.00  
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Materiality, Aggregation and Offsetting

The Company presents material items separately. Financial Statements is a result of processing a large 
number of transactions or events that are aggregated into classes according to the nature or function. 
However, the company does not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses unless required or 
permitted by IAS or IFRS.

Statement of compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Frame work, applicable 
International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), Companies Act 1994, 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other relevant laws and regulations applicable 
in Bangladesh.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements are presented in accordance with guidelines provided by IAS 1: ‘Presentation 
of Financial Statements’.
The Financial Statements comprises of:

 (i) A Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018;
 (ii)  A Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018;
 (iii)  A Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2018;
 (iv)  A Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2018; and
 (v)  Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information.

Reporting Period

The Financial Statements cover the accounting year commencing from 01July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

Authorisation for Issue

The Financial Statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in 
their meeting held on 02 October 2018.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in Bangladeshi Currency (Taka), which is 
the functional currency of the Company. All financial information presented has been rounded off to 
the nearest Taka except where indicated otherwise.   
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Comparative information

Comparative information disclosed is of the financial year 2016-2017 for all numerical information in 
the Financial Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information wherever it is relevant for 
understanding of the current year’s Financial Statements.
Figures for the comparative year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary to 
ensure better comparability with the current year.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported value of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making 
the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates arise because of uncertainties 
inherent within them but this does not undermine reliability. However, the estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed as an on-going basis and the revision is recognized in the year in which the 
estimates are revised. Such revision however were made in the year 2015-2016 for Property, Plant and 
Equipment as required by the International Accounting Standard 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” 
in respect periodicity of revaluation except in the useful life of two classes of non-current assets. There 
is no material impact of change of estimates on the financial results of the Company for the financial 
year 2017-2018.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the capital structure is to maintain an efficient combination of debt and 
equity ratio to achieve a low cost of capital. The management of the Company regularly reviews the 
return on equity, capital structure in light of the economic conditions, business strategies and future 
commitments. For that purpose, capital includes issued share capital, securities premium and all other 
equity reserves and debt covering foreign currency term loan, Long-term & Short Term Loan from 
domestic Financial Institutions / Banks and finance lease obligations, etc. During the financial year 
ended 30 June 2018, no significant changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes relating 
to the management of the Company’s capital structure.

Going Concern

The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for a foreseeable future. To finance 
the further business expansion, in the financial year 2015-2016, the Company made for a public issue 
of Ordinary Shares through “Book Building Process” allotted and issued 50,000,000 Ordinary Shares. 
The current credit facilities and resources of the Company provide sufficient funds to meet the present 
requirements of its existing business operations and expansion. For these reasons, the Board of 
Directors of the Company continue to adopt the policy of a “Going Concern” basis in preparing the 
Financial Statements.
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Application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting 
Standards (IAS)

Name of the Accounting Standards Ref. No. Status of 
Application

Financial Instruments : Disclosure IFRS-7 Applied

Financial Instruments IFRS-9 Applied

Fair Value Measurement IFRS-13 Applied

Presentation of Financial Statements IAS-1 Applied

Inventories IAS-2 Applied

Statement of Cash Flows IAS-7 Applied

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors IAS-8 Applied

Events after the Reporting Period IAS-10 Applied

Income Taxes IAS-12 Applied

Property, Plant and Equipment IAS-16 Applied

Leases IAS-17 Applied

Revenue Recognition IAS-18 Applied

Employee Benefits IAS-19 Applied

The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates IAS-21 Applied

Borrowing Costs IAS-23 Applied

Related Party Disclosures IAS-24 Applied

Financial Instruments: Presentation IAS-32 Applied

Earnings Per Share IAS-33 Applied

Impairment of Assets IAS-36 Applied

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets IAS-37 Applied

Intangible Assets IAS-38 Applied

Financial Instruments: Recognition & Measurement IAS-39 Applied

Investment Property IAS-40 Applied

4.13
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Significant Accounting Policies

Background:
The Company selects and applies accounting policies consistently unless a IFRS or IAS 
specifically requires or permit a different and appropriate accounting policy for the same or 
results in the financial statements providing more relevant information about the effects of 
transaction on company’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows.
The Company corrects and discloses the material prior period’s/year’s error/s, if any, 
retrospectively by restating the comparative amount for the prior periods/years in which the 
error has occurred.
 
Revenue Recognition

(a) Sales of Goods: In compliance with the requirements of IAS-18: “Revenue”, revenue 
isrecognized for local sales of Pharmaceuticals Drugs and Medicines at the time of 
delivery to chemists/Institutions and for Export sales of Pharmaceuticals Drugs and 
Medicines at the time of delivery to Custom Port. i.e. when the significant risk and 
rewards of ownership is transferred to the buyer, whereby there is no continuing 
management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue and cost in 
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

(b) Rental income is recognized when accrued on a time proportion basis.
(c) Interest income is recognized when accrued on a time proportion basis.
(d) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Sales

Turnover comprises the invoice value of goods supplied by the Company, representing 
domestic and export sales. Revenue from Sales is exclusive of VAT.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i) Recognition and Measurement

The Cost of an item of property plant and equipment (PPE) is recognized as an asset if, and 
only if it is probable that the future economic benefit will flow to the company and cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.
PPE have been measured and stated at cost or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment loss, if any, in compliance with the requirement of IAS 16: 
Property Plant and Equipment and IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. The cost of acquisition of an 
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets 
to its present location and working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, 
duties and non-refundable taxes. 
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ii) Maintenance Costs

The company incurs maintenance costs for all its major items of Property, Plant and  
Equipment. Repair and maintenance costs are charged as expenses, as and when incurred.

iii) Depreciation

Land is held on a freehold basis and is not depreciated considering its unlimited useful life. In 
respect of all other Non-current assets, depreciation is provided on a straight line method to 
amortize the cost of the asset after commissioning over their expected useful life. In respect 
of addition to property, plant and equipment, depreciation begins from the date of respective 
asset available for use up to the date immediately preceding the date of disposal.

The rate at which assets are depreciated per annum depending on the nature and estimated 
useful life of assets are given below:

Category of Assets Rate

Building 2.50% to 13.33%

Machinery and Equipment 7.50%  to 100%

Furniture and Fixtures 10% to 100%

Motor Vehicles 8.33%  to  100%

Utilities, Engineering and Electrical Installations 7.50%  to 100%

Office Equipment 10%

Books and Periodicals 10%

iv) Impairment of Assets

If the recoverable amount of a PPE (except Investment Property) is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the PPE is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction 
is an impairment loss. An Impairment loss on a non revalued asset is recognised in the 
Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. However, an impairment 
loss on a revalued asset is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent that the 
impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that asset. Such 
impairment loss on a revalued asset reduces the revaluation surplus to the extent for the 
asset. The Company do impairment testing at the end of each reporting period if indication 
of any impairment exists.

v) Retirement and Disposal

On disposal of Non-current assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated 
and gain or loss on such disposal is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
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Comprehensive Income, which is determined with reference to the net book value of the 
assets and net sales proceeds. The revaluation surplus included in Equity in respect of 
disposed/demolished/discarded Property, Plant and Equipment is treated as per the principle 
enunciated in the IAS 16.
 
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less provision for amortization and impairment. The 
cost of acquiring and developing computer software for internal use and internet sites for  
internal/external use are capitalized as “Intangible Assets” where the software or site support 
a significant business system and the expenditure lead to the creation of a durable asset. 
Amortization is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income under the head of Administrative Expenses on a straight line basis @ 7.50% over the 
estimated useful lives of Intangible Assets, from the date that they are available for use.

Leased Assets

In compliance with IAS 17: “Leases”, Lease in terms of which the company assumes substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases and all other leases are 
classified as operating lease.

Upon initial recognition, the lease assets is measured at an amount equal to the lower of 
its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payment. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the assets is accounted for in accordance with accounting policy applicable to 
the assets.

Though there are financing in the name of lease financing however, as per the substance of the 
agreement, these financing are not in the nature of lease financing, hence has been grouped 
as ‘Long Term Loan’ and its current maturity as ‘Current Maturity of Long Term Loans’.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial assets and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial Assets

Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, other 
receivables and equity instrument of another entity. The company initially recognized 
receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized initially on 
the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the transaction. 
The company derecognizes a financial asset when, and only when the contractual rights or 
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probabilities of receiving the cash flow from the assets expire or it transfer the right to receive 
the contractual cash flows on the financial assets in a transaction in which substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. 
Provision is made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payments, taking into consideration 
aging, previous experience and general economic conditions. When a trade receivable is 
determined to be uncollectable, it is written off firstly against any provision available and 
then to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously provided for and/or written off are credited to the Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. During the year under audit, the company has no 
uncollectable trade receivable to be written off and for which it created any provision in the 
earlier years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash in hand, cash at bank and cash at BO Account 
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value.

ii) Financial Liability

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognises the 
financial liabilities when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. 
Financial liabilities include payable for expense, liability for capital expenditure and other 
current liabilities.

Impairment

i) Financial Assets

Trade receivable and others receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if 
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that 
asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indicates that a debtor or issuer will enter 
bankruptcy etc.

5.07 



117

A n n u a l  R e p o r t     2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements                                                
As at & for the year ended 30 June 2018

ii) Non-Financial Assets 
An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company 
assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The 
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in 
use. Carrying amount of the assets is reduced to its recoverable amount by recognizing an 
impaired loss if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the asset is lesser than its carrying 
amount. Impaired loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impaired loss 
of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent to availability of 
revaluation surplus. If it more than the revaluation surplus available, then it is routed through 
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Investment in Shares

According to the relevant laws applicable, the company used to invest in shares of listed 
companies through stock exchange, by using the income generated in Tax Holiday Unit.  
Initially, the investments in shares are recognized at cost including transaction cost. Further, 
the entity recognises subsequent changes in Other Comprehensive Income.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value as prescribed by IAS 2: 
‘Inventories’. The cost of inventories comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course 
of business in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of 
material consumption is determined on first in first out basis. Net realizable value is based on 
estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to make the sales.
 

Type of Stock Basis of Valuation
Raw Materials At cost on First in First Out basis
Packing Materials At cost on First in First Out basis
Work-in-Process At cost
Finished Goods At lower of cost or net realizable value
Printing Stationery At cost on First in First Out basis
Spare & Accessories At cost on First in First Out basis

5.08
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Provisions:

Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in the Financial Statements in line with the 
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 37: “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets” when:

-    The company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events. 
-    It is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations.
-    A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense comprised of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and accounted for in 
accordance with requirement of IAS 12: “Income Taxes”.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period/yearandany 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years as per the Provisions of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 1984 and duly amended by the Finance Act time to time.

Deferred Tax

The company has recognized deferred tax using balance sheet method in compliance with 
the provision of IAS 12: “Income Taxes”. The policy of recognition of deferred tax assets/
liabilities is based on temporary differences (taxable or deductible) between the carrying 
amount (Book Value) of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and its tax base, 
and accordingly, deferred tax income or expense has been considered to determine Net Profit 
after Tax and Earnings Per Share (EPS).

Loans – Long Term and Short Term from Banks, Financial Institutions and Others.

i) Borrowing Cost

Interest and other cost incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowings of fund 
are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred unless such borrowing cost 
related to acquisition/construction of assets in progress that are capitalized as per IAS 23: 
“Borrowing costs”.
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ii) Charges on the Assets of the Company:

There are Fixed and Floating charges over:

- All the Plant, Machinery and Equipment (both present and future) ;
- Floating assets (both present and future) including but not limited to book debts, bills 

receivable, goodwill and other floating assets both tangible and intangible and all 
documents title, undertakings, contracts, engagements securities and other documents 
whatsoever related to such assets of the Company in favor of various bankers securing 
the various kinds of loans taken by the company from them through a Pari Passu security 
sharing agreement dated 18 April 2018 (7th Supplemental to the lenders’ Pari Passu 
Security Sharing Agreement)amongst the banks. As per the agreement under the names 
of the participating banks in the charges through Pari Passu agreement are stated here 
under:

• Dutch Bangla Bank Limited.
• Dhaka Bank Limited.
• The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
• Standard Chartered Bank.
• Trust Bank Limited.
• Eastern Bank Ltd.

- Registered mortgage of the specified Land of the Company executed in favor of Concerned 
 Banks/ Financial Institutions.
- Personal Guarantee of some /all sponsored directors in favor of certain Banks/Financial  
 Institutions.

Employee Benefits

The Company maintains defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible 
permanent employees. The eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions 
set forth in the respective agreements/trust deeds.

The Company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the 
provision of IAS19: ‘Employee Benefits’.

The cost of employee benefit is charged off as revenue expenditure in the year to which the 
contributions relate.

The Company’s employee benefits include the following:

i) Defined Contribution Plan (Provident Fund)

The Company got recognition from Commissioner of Taxes its provident fund scheme (Defined 
Contribution Plan) vide order no.: bw_ bs wc,Gd Aby‡gv`b/32/K:A:-3/2010-2011, ZvwiL: 23/03/2011 
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for employees of the company eligible to be members of the fund in accordance with the 
rules of the provident fund constituted under an irrevocable trust. All permanent employees 
contribute to the provident fund and the Company also makes equal contribution.

The Company recognizes contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an 
employee has rendered services to the Company in exchange for such contribution. The legal 
and constructive obligation is limited to the amount the Company agrees to contribute to the 
fund.

 ii) Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)

The Company has formulated a policy related to “Payment of Gratuity” payable to its eligible 
Permanent Employees who are serving the Company for a considerable duration, at the time 
of severance of their relationship from the Company. Eligibility for getting the said Benefit 
mainly depends upon the length of service with the organization subject to compliance of 
the eligibility criteria as prescribed by the management in the policy and accordingly the 
company has made necessary provision (non-funded) in the books of accounts.

iii) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are 
measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed at the time when the related service 
is provided.

iv) Contribution to Worker’s Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and Worker’s Welfare 
Fund (WWF)

This represents 5% of net profit before tax and before charging the contribution to WPPF by 
the Company as per provision of the section 15 of the Bangladesh Labor (Amendment) Act, 
2013 and is payable to beneficiary as defined in the said law and accordingly the Company 
has made necessary provision in the books of accounts.

v) Insurance Schemes

Employees of the company are covered under group hospitalization and group term life 
insurance including accidental benefits. Summary of the plans are stated here under:

A. Group Hospitalization Insurance Plan:

In this scheme, the Company covers its employees under hospitalization and other medical 
expenses related with hospitalization of the employees from salary Grade K and above. The 
hospitalization benefits are provided to employees as per three tier system and each tier of 
benefits covering from different group of employees based on salary grade in the Company. 
The Company pay annual premium to the insurance Company for this cover of their employees.
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B. Group Term Life Insurance Including Accidental Death Benefit:

In this policy, all the permanent and salaried employees of the Company are covered. If an 
insured employee dies irrespective of the cause of death, Insurance Company upon receipt 
of written proof pays to the employer the sum insured in respect of that employee as per the 
terms of the contract between the insurance Company and the employer.

In respect of fourth class (i.e. Driver, Peon, Cleaner, Guard, Electrician, Loader, Packing Man, 
Worker and Helper etc.) married employees, as a family planning incentive, if he/she leaves 
behind not more than two children then additional sum equivalent to 15% of sum insured is 
being paid to them.
 
Employee Position:

During the year there were 7,942 employees employed in the Company with remuneration 
above Tk. 3,000 per month, among them 5,910employees employed for the full year and 
remaining 2,032 employees employed less than full year.

During the year tax had been deducted at source from the salary income of 1,270 employees 
as per the provision of section 50 of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 against their payment.

Investment Property

For Investment Property, the Company follows fair value model as subsequent measurement. 
The Investment Property has been revalued based on cost approach and cost has been 
ascertained considering various factors including quality of maintenance, the accumulated 
depreciation of the expired portion of their effective lives and the present condition of the 
assets in question as well as other relevant factors.

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of Investment Property is recognized in 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year in which it arises.

Share Premium

As per IAS-32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”, Para-37, an entity typically incurs various 
costs in issuing or acquiring its own equity instruments. Those costs might include registration 
and other regulatory fees amounts paid to legal, accounting and other professional advisers, 
printing costs and stamp duties. The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted 
for as a deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are 
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have 
not been incurred. 
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The Company shows share premium account balance after netting off of relevant transaction 
costs. The balance in share premium account shall be utilized in accordance with provisions 
of Section 57(2) of the Companies Act, 1994 and as directed by the Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission in this respect from time to time.

Research Development and Experimental Cost:

In compliance with the requirements of IAS-38 “Intangible Assets”, research, development 
and experimental costs are usually absorbed as revenue charges to the Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as and when incurred, as being not material in the 
company’s and /local context.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirement of IAS 33: “Earnings per 
Share”, by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 
outstanding during the year.
 
Basic Earnings Per Share (Numerator/Denominator)

Earnings (Numerator)

This represents earning for the year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders.

No. of Ordinary shares (Denominator)

This represents weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year.
 
Diluted Earnings per Share

As per the existing term and conditions of the loans taken by the Company from various 
financial institutions and bank or contracts with various parties including employees, there is 
no condition related to conversion of loan into Ordinary Share Capital or stipulation related 
to share based payments for material and services supplied by them to the Company. Hence, 
the Diluted EPS of the Company is same as Basic EPS.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the 
transaction date. The monetary assets and liabilities, if any, denominated in foreign currencies 
at the financial position date are translated at the applicable rates of exchanges ruling at that 
date. Exchange differences are accounted as revenue expenditure/income in compliance with 
the provision of IAS 21: “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”.

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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5.19 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors of the Company take the responsibility for the preparation and 
presentation of these Financial Statements.

Triple Bottom Line Practice in ACME

In ACME, we believe that there is more to business than just making profit. Long term 
business success and sustainability relies on economic value, environmental health, and 
social progress. Our values are rooted in the concept of the ‘Triple Bottom Line’ (TBL) and 
we assume ourselves accountable in relationship to Profit, Planet and People. We strongly 
believe that earning profit can’t be the only goal of any organization, well-being of the people 
and environment are also equally important, hence ACME has adopted Triple Bottom Line 
concept as its business philosophy. 

Segmental Reporting

As required by IFRS – 8 “Operating Segments”, if an entity operates and engages in different 
economic environments and activities then the entity has to disclose information, to enable 
users of its Financial Statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
so carried out.

The Company consider the operation on aggregate basis and manage the operations as a 
single operating segment. Hence, it is felt that such segment reporting is not required to be 
disclosed.
 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingents Assets

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are present or possible obligations or on liabilities 
or assets, arising from past events and existence of which depends upon the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within the control of the 
Company or which amount of the obligations cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
In accordance with IAS-37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, they are 
disclosed in the Note # 47 hereunder.

Statement of Cash Flows
 
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS-7:‘Statement of Cash 
Flows’ by using direct method.

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s 
position at the date of Statement of Financial Position or those that indicate the going 
concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the Financial Statements. Events after 
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed when material.

Insurance Claim

The Company recognizes the insurance claim only when the compensation in respect of loss 
claimed/assessed becomes receivable from the insurer.

Highest and Lowest Equity Share Price at Stock Exchanges:

The monthly highest and lowest price of each equity shares of Taka 10 each fully paid up of 
the company listed at Dhaka and Chittagong stock exchange during the financial year 2017-
18 is as under: 

Trade
 Name Date Dhaka Stock Exchange Chittagong Stock Exchange

Highest 
Quoted price

Lowest 
Quoted Price

Highest 
Quoted price

Lowest 
Quoted Price

ACMELAB

July 2017 120.00 115.30 120.10 115.40
August 2017 120.80 117.20 120.70 116.70
September 2017 119.20 113.20 119.30 112.90
October 2017 117.00 112.20 116.50 112.10
November 2017 115.10 109.40 115.10 108.80
December 2017 116.30 113.20 115.50 112.90
January 2018 116.60 113.10 116.50 112.60
February 2018 114.80 110.20 113.80 109.20
March 2018 111.00 101.50 110.50 101.30
April 2018 105.80 103.10 106.70 102.90
May 2018 104.00 96.00 103.30 96.90
June 2018 100.00 92.80 100.00 91.80

Risk Management

Efficient and effective Risk management is a part and parcel of today’s business. As such, 
The ACME Laboratories Ltd. would be subject to systematic risks of the industry and market 
as well. The majority of these risks are commercial and business risks in nature that can 
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be mitigated effectively. Such major risk factors and management approaches on the same are 
described in brief as under:

Operational Risk

ACME  relies on suppliers for ingredients and various third parties for certain manufacturing-related 
services to produce material that meets appropriate content, quality and stability standards of 
the company products and after approval it is being released for commercial distribution. ACME 
may not be able to produce its drug substance or drug product to appropriate standards without 
the required supports from its suppliers and vendors. Again, if it fails to maintain important 
manufacturing and service relationships, may not find a replacement supplier or required vendor 
or develop Company’s own capabilities which could delay or impair Company’s ability to obtain 
regulatory approval for its products and substantially increase Company’s costs or deplete profit 
margins, if any. 

Management Perception 

ACME has a good number of vendors and for each and every ingredient and service, the Company 
have more than one approved vendors. It uses to conduct vendor audit and its professionals are 
very conscious and concerned regarding the vendor issue.  Further, none of the supplier accounts 
for significant amount of total purchases.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that Company faces due to unfavourable movement in the interest rates. 
Changes in the government’s monetary policy, along with increased demand for loans/investments 
tend to increase the interest rates. Such rises in interest rates mostly affect Companies having 
floating rate loans or Companies investing in debt securities.

Management Perception

In order to manage this risk and overcome it, the Company exercises prudence in its cash flow 
management, supported by continued strength in sales and marketing. ACME is very careful in 
forecasting the prices of ingredients and manages its costs in an effective manner. To maintain 
effective rate of return ACME also follow knowledge and information based products mix, so as to 
ensure that the debt repayments are met on schedule, even if the interest rates were to rise.

Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange rate risk occurs due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. As the Company has 
taken foreign currency loan, imports major raw materials and some packing materials from abroad 
and earns most of the revenue in local currency, unfavourable volatility or fluctuation may affect the 

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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profitability of the Company. On the other hand, if exchange rate decreased against local currency 
opportunity will be created for generating more profit/surplus.

Management Perception

ACME earns some of its revenue in US dollars, thereby creating to built-up auto hedging scope. 
Besides, in case of significant BDT devaluation, to keep the cost to minimum, appropriate and 
responsible hedging mechanisms may be applied.  However, if the price of the US dollar appreciates 
too sharply against the BDT, this will be a nation-wide phenomenon experienced by the entire 
industry. In such a scenario, there will be a market adjustment in end product prices, subject to the 
approval of the concerned authorities.

Industry Risk

The pharmaceutical industry has witnessed challenges such as intellectual property rights, a 
historic fuel price peak, and material cost increase across the globe. It stands as one of the most 
challenging and dynamic industries to operate as on date. Fortunately, Bangladesh is only least 
developed country who demonstrates significant competencies in pharmaceuticals industry and it 
requires huge quantity of medicine for its present 166 million (approx.) populations. As such, local 
pharmaceutical industry is not in a trouble; rather the said industry has ample opportunities to 
grow.

Management Perception

As the per capital income and per person consumption of medicine has been increasing over 
the years, management is optimistic about growth opportunities of pharmaceutical industry in 
Bangladesh. The Company is trying to adopt sophisticated state of art cutting edge technology 
driven manufacturing facilities and making efforts to catch the opportunity of regulated global 
market apart from domestic market.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the 
Company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the pharmaceutical products which would 
adversely affect the performance of the Company. On the other hand, strong marketing and brand 
management system would help the Company to increase its customer and market base.

Management Perception

The products of pharmaceuticals industry are of basic nature and have a wide market as they 
are giving a good market share to The ACME Laboratories Ltd. at present. Hence, it will hardly be 
the case that there will be a lack of demand for the products. Moreover, as explained earlier, the 

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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pharmaceuticals industry is only increasing year-on-year basis and ACME is following full-proof 
scientific integrated marketing policy hence, has marginal probability for shrinkage of the market 
share.

Technology Related Risk

Pharmaceutical industry is dynamic in nature and heavily driven by technology. Hence, technology 
always plays a vital role here. Adaptation of better technology may help to gain remarkable core 
competencies that certainly create competitive advantages like increase productivity; reduce 
costs, better perception of customers. Firms are exposed to technology risks when there are better 
technologies available in the market than one used by the Company which may cause operational 
inefficiency.

Management Perception

As a one of the leading pharmaceutical company of the country, there are clear intent regarding 
adaptation of the latest technology in the Company here and the management is aware of 
technological changes and always trying to adopt new technology according to its needs. 
Furthermore, routine and proper preventive maintenance of the equipment carried out by the 
Company ensures longer service life for the existing equipment and facilities. Finally, ACME is 
committed to hold its leading edge and maintaining quality and brand image.

Potential or Existing Government Regulations

The Company operates under the Drugs Ordinance 1982, Companies Act 1994, Directorate General 
of Drug Administration (DGDA) Regulations, Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Income Tax Rules 
1984, Customs Act 1969, Value Added Tax (VAT) Act 1991, and Value Added Tax (VAT) Rules 1991, 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987and other rules and regulations of the country. 
Any abrupt changes of the policies made by the regulatory authorities may adversely affect the 
business of the Company.

Management Perception

Since product of pharmaceuticals industry is essential one for lives and it is an import substitute 
industry and degree of value addition is remarkable, we see the government regulations are mostly 
investment friendly for this sector particularly. As ACME is one of the top ranking pharmaceutical 
Companies of the country, it is doing business by following all the rules and regulations of the 
land. Change in regulations will bring changed strategies for doing the business by the dynamic 
management of the Company. Besides, many of the patented drugs/molecules will be off patented 
and it will be an opportunity for the manufacturer to freely manufacture, promote and distribute 
without any restriction.

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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Potential Changes in Global and National Policies

Changes of Government policies may affect business. 47 least developed country (LDCs) including 
Bangladesh are not required to provide patent protection, give exclusive marketing rights to 
companies with patented products or comply with the “mailbox” program – create a process to 
receive complaints about pharmaceutical product patent right violations until 1 January 2033, or 
until such a date on which they cease to be a LDCs Member, whichever date is earlier.

Management Perception

Pharmaceuticals, over the years have been proved as a thrust sector for the country and growing 
at a considerable pace each year. In addition, ACME is continuously trying to adopt right technology 
and build infrastructure to meet TRIPS standards. 

History of Non-operation 

The ACME Laboratories started its journey in the year 1954 and converted into a private limited 
company on 17 March 1976 vide registration no. C-4745/163 of 1975-76 under the Companies 
Act-1913. Since commencement of its operation, it has no history of non-operation till now. The 
Company is running by a professional team and pursues continuous full-proof market promotion 
system, which reduce the non-operating risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other 
party by failing to discharge its obligation. Credit risk information helps users of Financial Statements 
asses the credit quality of the entity’s financial assets and level and sources of impairment loss. 
Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an on-going 
basis. As at 30 June 2018 substantial part of the receivables are subject to insignificant credit risk. 
Risk exposures from other financial assets i.e. cash at bank and other external receivables are very 
nominal.

Management Perception

To mitigate the credit risk the management of the Company follows robust credit control and 
collections policies. The Company has dedicated credit collections team who are responsible 
for collection of dues and they have been demonstrating remarkable performances in collecting 
receivables as per Company’s credit and collection policy.

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity (Cash and Cash equivalents) is 
to ensure as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses 
or bringing damage to the Company’s reputation. Typically, the Company ensures that it 
has sufficient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected operational expenses including 
financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast with due consideration of 
time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient fund to 
make the expected payment within due date. 

Management Perception

Effective liquidity risk management requires both a top-down and a bottom-up approach. 
Strategy, principles and objectives are set at Board and Management levels. ACME conducts 
liquidity management in a manner that maintains stability and flexibility in day-to-day funding 
activities. Our liquidity risk management starts by managing daily payment of cheques, daily 
cash inflow and outflow, maturity of deposits and our access to other funding sources as and 
when required.

General Comments & Observations:

a)  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered 
necessary to confirm to current year’s presentation. Figures have been rounded off to 
the nearest taka, as the currency represented in this Financial Statements.

b)  All shares are fully paid up.

c)  The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currency against royalties.

d)  No foreign exchange remitted to the relevant shareholders during the year under audit.

e) No amount of money was expended by the company for compensating any members of 
the Board for special service rendered.

f)  No brokerage was paid against sales during the year under audit.

g) There was no bank guarantee issued by the company on behalf of directors. 

The ACME Laboratories Ltd.
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GOING CONCERN

Going concern is one of the fundamental assumptions in accounting on the basis of which financial statements 
are prepared. Under the going concern assumptions, an entity is viewed as continuing in business for the 
foreseeable future and, therefore, it accounts for its assets and liabilities on the basis that it will be able to 
realize and discharge them in the normal course of business.

The Directors of ACME have assessed three potential conclusions regarding the circumstances of the 
company, i.e. whether any material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, whether any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability, and the use of the going concern is not appropriate. The 
Directors are convinced from the following indications, which give reasonable assurance as to company’s 
continuance as a going concern for the foreseeable future:

FINANCIAL INDICATIONS

Positive Net Current Asset
ACME has positive net current assets of BDT 1,098.51 million as at 30 June 2018. It indicates the company’s 
abilities to meet its short term immediate obligations.

Uninterrupted financial support by lenders
The company has established long term business relationship with its lenders. So we enjoy easy and fair access 
to the funding sources to meet our increasing need for growth.

Positive operating cash flows
During the year 2017-2018, the Statement of Cash Flows of the Company shows very positive operating cash 
flows amounting BDT 1,578.32 million. It revealed that the Company can internally generate excellent cash 
flows to meet its fixed financial obligation and other liabilities.

Positive key financial ratios
The Company has a very positive financial ratio as evident from financial summary given on this Annual 
Report. Such positive financial ratios indicate Company’s sound financial strength and good prospects.

Consistent payment of dividends
The Company has been paying dividend consistently to its shareholders over last four years i.e. during the 
year 2017-2018, Board of Directors has proposed 35% cash dividend to the shareholders. In the year 2016-17, 
2015-16, 2014-15 the company declared 35% cash dividend consistently to its shareholders. The continuous 
paying of dividend reflects Company’s long-term viability in operational existence.

Credibility in Payment of Obligations
The Company has strong credibility in terms of Payment of its obligation to the lenders. The Company is very 
particulars in fulfilling the terms of loan agreement.

Performance growth
ACME has excellent growth in its operating performance. Total operating revenue is BDT 14,813.91 million and 
total profit after tax is BDT 1,426.57 million. All those indicators support Company’s continuance in foreseeable 
periods.
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OPERATING INDICATIONS

Expansion of business

The Company has expanded its business line in locally and globally by introducing new projects, new products 
line and strengthening its distribution channel. In continuation of its regular development with regard to 
competencies, capabilities and adaptation of sophisticated cutting edge technologies the Company has 
recently completed and started a couple of projects. Besides, considering the future prospects and market 
demand, the Management as per directive of the Board decided to initiate few new projects with the existing 
projects. Among the new projects, the commencement of commercial production of Steroid & Hormone, 
Penicillin and extension unit of Solid Dosages projects will be started within stipulated timeframe. The 
construction works of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) project has already been started which will 
also be completed within the timeframe.

The Marketing Management Division also expanded its products/services line by introducing 22 new products 
during the year. It is expected that after introducing all these products in the market, a positive impact will be 
reflected in the revenue of the Company in near future. These represent Company’s intention for perpetuity.

Corporate environment and employee satisfaction

The Company has sound human resource policy to ensure the congenial working environment and better 
career path. Multidisciplinary human resources comprising above seven thousands full time equivalent 
qualified, trained and skilled professionals, including a good number of white collar employees such 
as Pharmacists, Chemists, Doctors, Microbiologists, Scientists, Engineers, Accountants and Business 
Administration graduates and/or post-graduates are currently working at ACME. Our utmost importance on 
the continuous development of human resources to enhance their competencies through continuous in-
house and external training programs and encourages our people.    

The Company maintains defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees that is determined 
according to the policy. Inspiring fringe benefits like incentive bonus, holiday allowance, laundry allowances, 
night allowances, driver allowances, technical allowances along with a classical working environment in place 
as part of our talent retention and motivational program. As we do believe, its success immensely depends 
upon performance of its human resources.



The Concept of Plant Signatures: The Braille of Plants

Introduction

In the 1500s Paracelsus von Hohenheim (1493-1541) developed the concept that the shape, color, 
taste, smell and other attributes of a plant indicate its use in healing. The “signature” could sometimes 
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“Plant Signatures”, in this article, we have compared with “The Braille” because, Braille is a system of 
��	��
�
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not a language rather, it is a code by which many languages may be written and read. Similarly, plants 
have their own language and their own special way of existing with us on planet Earth. The way plants 
show themselves through their colors, shapes, textures, scents, and locations are within our perception 
and can be understood more fully through the mind’s eye i.e. intuition.  These appearances are subtle, 
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human bodies.

Key Elements of the Plant Signatures
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behavior such as, whether a plant growing alone or in a group,  signatures of stems and roots, leaf 
shape and texture of plant, overall shape and formations, moisture and stickiness,  smell, color, taste 
etc. are discussed in brief as follows:

Habitat of Plants
"�������������������������������	���������������	���
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(Helianthus annuus). Plants that prefer growing in the shade tend to be cooling, e.g. Peppermint 
(Mentha piperita). Plants that thrive in damp areas will help with conditions such as rheumatism, fevers, 
colds, and coughs, examples include Mint (Mentha spp.), Sweet Flag (Acorus calamus), Basak (Justicia 
adhatoda Linn.) etc.
"������������������
����
��������
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(Helianthus annuus), and Eucalyptus (Eucalyptus globulus).

�������	
�Helianthus annuus) Basak (Justicia adhatoda Linn.)
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Sweet Flag (Acorus calamus)

Plants that grow in or around clear ponds and fast-moving brooks tend to be diuretic and will help 
clear the urinary tract of waste, examples include Mint (Mentha spp.), Bedstraw or Cleavers (Galium 
aparine). 
Plants that thrive in gravel and rock formations will help clear stone-forming and catarrhal accumulations 
from the bronchial and alimentary systems, e.g. Parsley (Petroselinum crispum).

  Bedstraw or Cleavers (Galium aparine) Parsley (Petroselinum crispum)

Plants Growing Alone or in a Group

Solitary plants tell that they are powerful and need to be treated with cautious respect. Plants that grow 
in masses such as Red Clover (Trifolium pratense) are more gentle in action or esculent.
Plants that grow near people like Dandelion (���������	
���
����) can be used safely for a long time. 
Plants that grow in the deep woods, such as Blue Cohosh (Caulophyllum thalictroides), has more 
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���
distance between house and forest can be used for a while but only during special seasons or for a 
certain period of time.
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The Signatures of Stems and Roots

Plants that have hollow stem will help clean tubes in the human body such as the bronchi and 
alimentary tract, e.g. Onion (Allium cepa) and Garlic (Allium sativum, A. canadense).

Onion (Allium cepa) Garlic (Allium sativum)

Annuals have most thread - thin roots. They do not live longer than one year and lack strong earth 
energy, thus, they are not grounding to the body and mind. However, they will raise a person’s spirit, 
lighten that person’s outlook and promote change. Their medicinal properties will be concentrated in 
���������
���������

Leaf Shape and Texture of Plant

Understanding the structure of a leaf can point to the use of a plant. For example, Liverwort (Hepatica 
spp.), used to heal liver conditions, has a leaf that is three-lobed, like the liver.

Liverwort (Hepatica spp.)

Plants with very soft leaves often ease pain in a diseased or injured area, e.g. Hollyhock 
(Althaea rosea) leaves were once used as a wound dressing. 
Spotted leaves point to tumorous growths and pus sacks on infected lungs, e.g. Lungwort 
(����
���
�	
���
���
�).
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Hollyhock (Althaea rosea) Lungwort (�������	
����
�
���
�)

Overall Shape and Formations

Plants that help the eyes, such as Carrots (Daucus carota) contain vitamin A, which is very 
����
�	������������������%��������&Solanum lycopersicum) are red and have four chambers, 
'�����	������������������%������	���������
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�����������������
�����������������
����
�
circulation. 

Carrots (Daucus carota) Tomato(Solanum lycopersicum)

                                                  
A skull-like shape reveals a brain healer, such as Walnut (Juglans spp.). Walnuts look like little 
brains, with left and right hemispheres and wrinkles that resemble the neocortex. Walnuts are 
known to improve brain function. Plants with a groin-like shape are used to overcome sterility 
and sexual lethargy, e.g. Ginseng (Panax quinquefolius).
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Ginseng (Panax quinquefolius) Walnut (Juglans spp.)

Plants with long trailing root systems and vines that resemble veins and the nervous system 
���������
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(Glycyrrhiza glabra), Grapes (Vitis vinifera) and Mints (Mentha spp). 

Strawberry (Fragraria spp.) and Blackberry (Rubus villosus) contain malic and citric acids, 
which break up formations that lead to kidney and gall stones. Plants that sting stimulate 
	���������	������	��������	
��������+	�����&�
��
���	
���
����).

Strawberry (Fragraria spp.) Blackberry (Rubus villosus)
                                 

Moisture and Stickiness          

Plants that contain a lot of resin are often healers of moist lesions, cuts, and ulcers, examples 
include Pine (Pinus spp.), Aloe (Aloe spp.). Plants with a sticky mucilaginous sap are also 
great itch healers, e.g.  Aloe (Aloe spp.), Pine (Pinus spp.).  If they are very juicy and wet (Aloe 
����/��������	���������������#����	������
�����
��������������
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Pine (Pinus spp.) Aloe (Aloe spp.)

Smell

Plants that are highly aromatic are also disinfectant and deodorizing; examples include 
Rosemary (�
����
���	
���
���
�), Lemon (Citrus limon). 

Lemon (Citrus limon)

For bad breath and body odor, examples include Mint (Mentha spp.), Anise (Pimpinella 
anisum). Other aromatics are antiseptic, germicidal, and antibiotic, examples include Fennel 
(Foeniculum vulgare), Basil (Ocimum spp.).
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Mint (Mentha spp.) Anise (Pimpinella anisum)

Fennel (Foeniculum vulgare) Basil (Ocimum spp.)

Color

%�����������
���	���������������
���
�����������	���	�����������
����	
����������
�	����������
heart; examples include Beet (Beta vulgaris), Pomegranate (Punica granatum L.)

Beet (Beta vulgaris) Pomegranate (Punica granatum L.)

7������ ������� ���� �����	���
� �	��� ���� �	���� ��
� ������ '���
	���� ��
� ������� �	���� �#�������
include Dandelion (���������	
���
����), Lemon (Citrus limon).
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�������
�����������������	��� ����������� ������	��� 	�����������������#	�����
�������������
a remedy for cyanosis (a blueness of the skin resulting from lack of oxygen in the blood 
��
� 	���	��
������	������/������� �*����
��� &Lavandula angustifolia),  Red Clover (Trifolium 
pratense).

Taste

There is an old adage: “Bitter taste, sweet to the stomach, sweet taste, bitter to the stomach.” 
"������������������������
��	��������������8��
��	�������
�������	�����"����������������������
�
taste like lemons have a lot of vitamin C. Plants that taste like carrots have a lot of carotene 
or vitamin A. Spinach, high in iron, actually tastes like iron. Plants that taste like garlic contain 
sulfur and can help clear heavy metals out of the body. Pain-killing plants will deaden the 
lower lip when tasted.

Conclusion

From the above discussion, it appears that, the plant signatures may serve as a very important 
tool for learning and disseminating knowledge about various plants and their medicinal value. 
The concept of plant signatures is found throughout the world. Despite its long history, the 
Plant Signatures concept has had little critical review. There are some concerns as well 
�����
	���������	���	
�����	����������������	����������<���	���������������	�������	
����������
morphological plant signatures let to the discovery of medicinal properties. However, the 
concept of plant signatures cannot be totally ignored stating as post hoc attributions to the 
��	�	��������
	�	������������=�������	�����������������	����������������������
���
�����������
����������>��	�����
�
������
�
����	������������	����
������������	���������	��������	���
��	���
the therapeutic value. Plants with strong odors or bitter tastes, for example, commonly are 
found in pharmacopoeias. Critical review of the concept of Plant Signatures and thereby more 
research are required to discover the Braille of plants and utilizing them for the betterment of 
human and animal health.
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